

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem • Mark Bond 


Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler • Stephanie Vignal 
   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2019-852 


Next Resolution No. 2019-582 


September 10, 2019 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 


B. Waste Management  


(Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager)   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 


C. House Bill 1406  


(Tom Rogers, Planning Manager)    







D. Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Everett Public Schools for the Purpose of Sharing Costs 
Associated with the MCPD School Resource Officer Program  


(Greg Elwin, Chief of Police)   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 


E. Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program Expenditures 


(Gordon Brink, Interim Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


F. Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount of 
$880,745.88 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Todd and Councilmember Steckler)   
G. July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $222,411.29 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Todd and Councilmember Steckler)  
 


H. August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,336.45 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Todd and Councilmember Steckler)  
 


I. August 23, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $217,930.80 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Todd and Councilmember Steckler)  
 


J. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019   
K. City Council Meeting Minutes of April 2, 2019  


 
REPORTS 
 


L. Mayor/Council  
 


M. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule   
 


N. Staff 


• Vision 2050 City Statement   
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


O. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council)  
 


P. To consider security risk assessment matters regarding computer and telecommunications 
networks in accordance with RCW 42.30.110(1)(a)(ii)  


 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 118







9/6/2019


Recycling Update:
Operation Blue Sky


Michelle Metzler
Public Sector Manager


June 2019


China’s Operation Blue Sky 0
Resetting the Recycling Industry ‘
Before China’s Operation Blue Sky Recycling Today


- China was world's largest recycler ' Meterleis e|'e Shipped '0 m0Te


of paper and plastic. countries across the globe with
higher cost shipping.


- West Coast recyclers bene?ted
from low cost shipping to China. ‘ V3‘UeOfFeeyelebles heVe


decreased.
- China and other markets


‘


accepted bales of recyclables that ’ C0515 ‘O Prepare ""e1e“e'S fer


included marginal materials and merke‘ heVe i”CYeeSed-


"°""e°V°'ab'e items‘ - Less tolerance for contamination
from markets.


- ?ghter standards on allowable
materials in bales of recyclables.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 3 of 118







9/6/2019


Improving Recycling Quality


Recycling Processing
- Slowed processing lines
- Added staff to lines


Customer Education
- Online educational tools
- Recycling Oops Tags


' THINKGREEN:


Resetting the Industry — WM Requests


1. Extraordinary Recycling Rate Increase
2. Contamination Charge
3. Recycling List Changes


' THINKGREEN.’


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 4 of 118







Resetting the Industry — WM Requests


1. Extraordinary Recycling Rate Increase


Calculating Rate Increase Request
- Increased processing costs at recycling center
- Decline in commodity pricing
- WUTC approved process and rates


Extraordinary Rate Increases Approved
- Granite Falls
- Stanwood
- Burlington
- Arlington
- Darrington
- WUTC areas


THINKGREEN.‘


Resetting the Industry — WM Requests


1. Extraordinary Recycling Rate Increase


City of MillCreek Rates


Recycling Relief Request Current
Rate


35-gallon
garbage cart


64-gallon garbage
cart


Residential


96-gallon garbage
cart


Commercial 64-gallon garbage
cart


1 yard


$15.33


$21.16


$27.64


529.30


$186.51


Recycling
Relief Request


$0.34


$0.84


$0.34


$0.86


$6.82


516.22


$22.00


$28.48


$30.16


$193.33


New Percent
Rate Increase


5.5%


4.0%


3.0%


2.9%


3.7%


THINKGREEN.’


9/6/2019


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 5 of 118







Resetting the Industry — WM Requests


2. Contamination Charge


Contamination: Non-recyclables in the recycling
bin (bagged garbage, Styrofoam, hoses, etc.)


1. Customer education


2. Customer education


3. Customer education + contamination charge


-..n........_..' THINKGRKEN.‘


Resetting the Industry — WM Requests


3. Recycling List Changes


Remove items with limited markets or that are now considered a
contaminate in bales


Mixed Paper: cups, cartons, frozen food boxes


Metal: Scrap metal, aerosol cans


Plastic: cups, plant pots. buckets


How to recycle:


H ,.l..
.,.,,.


-am ...........' THINKGREEN;


9/6/2019


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 6 of 118







Resetting the Recycling industry
The New Normal


international Recycling Markets
- Situation is not likely to improve
- Lower commodity prices and higher quality standards are the new normal


Cities need to partner with haulers to create sustainable recycling systems
- Increase rates for recycling service
- Help reduce contamination
- Focus on recycling the right materials


THINKGREEN.‘


Thank you for your partnership
and supporting a sustainable
recycling system.


Questions?


THINKGREEN:


9/6/2019


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 7 of 118







%
WRRA
%


WASHINGTON REFUSE & RECYCLING ASSOCIATION
China's National Sword Policy


U dated 1.28.18


China launched a customs program called "Operation Green Fence” in 2013, aimed at increasing environmental quality
by reducing waste importation and contamination in recyclable materials. China instituted a customs crackdown on


waste importation called "National Sword” in 2017. The latest phase, called "Blue Sky 2018," is a 10-month long period
of ’special actions against foreign garbage smuggling’. As a result of these policies, China banned the import of many


recyclable materials on January 1, 2018, and lowered the contamination rate for recyclables not covered by the ban to


0.5%. China will ban additional materials in July 2019 and has also imposed 25-50% tariffs on many recyclables. China
may ban the import of all recyclables within several years.


China notified the World Trade Organization in July 2017 that it planned to ban the import of 24 varieties of solid waste


and recyclables, including mixed paper, plastics 3-7 (including most postconsumer plastics) metals, and other materials
commonly collected by U.S. recycling programs. China banned 32 additional recyclable materials on December 31, 2018.


China also imposed a new 0.5% contaminant limit for the remaining recyclable materials not covered by the ban. A
typical permitted recycling facility (Material Recovery Facility or MRF)achieves contaminant rates of 3-5%. The new limit


is far below any existing international standard and all but unachievable with current equipment and system costs.


China is the largest manufacturing nation in the world and the single largest consumer of recyclables. Recyclable


materials are the sixth largest U.S. export to China. U.S. recyclers have relied on demand from the Chinese market and
low shipping rates to China. Due to a large trade imbalance, it was historically very cheap to backhaul recyclable
materials in shipping containers arriving from China. Other markets exist, but shipping prices are much higher and the
markets are much smaller. Economies around the world are growing, but there is no country or combination of
countries that can consume the amount of material China has historically imported for manufacturing.


U.S. recycling is facing a time of challenge and uncertainty. The Chinese market is unlikely to return and other markets
are adopting similar restrictions. Recycling requires an end market for recyclable materials. Demand still exists in China


for many recyclables and Chinese millsare facing shortages of materials. U.S. recyclables cannot reach the Chinese
market because of the new policy. As a result, many materials are flooding ports and disrupting markets in other
countries. Thailand has banned all recyclable plastic imports. Vietnam has already suspended recyclable plastic imports


and will not issue new import licenses. Indonesia issued a 100% pre—shipment inspection policy for recovered fiber to


reduce contamination. Malaysia is implementing tight restrictions on plastic imports. Alternate markets are more


expensive and difficult to reach, do not have the capacity to replace China, and are adopting similar restrictions. Some


Chinese recyclers and manufacturers are relocating to other countries, including the U.S., but this process will take years.


As a result, there is continuing market uncertainty even for materials not covered by the ban. China is conducting strict
inspections of recyclables at U.S. facilities. Even materials that meet the new 0.5% contaminant threshold will still be
rejected if any banned material is found. An entire shipment will be disallowed if a single bottle with dried juice inside is


found during an inspection of materials that otherwise meet the 05% threshold. This includes not only the bale or


container inspected, but the entire shipping allotment (10+ shipping containers), all rejected due to one prohibitive.


U.S. recycling programs currently mandate the collection of many recyclables covered by the ban and many other
materials which contaminate the recycling stream. The surplus of materials from mandated recycling programs has


driven prices for recyclables to historic lows and left others with no clear processing and manufacturing destination. In


many cases, prices have gone negative and the cost of shipping exceeds the value of the recyclables. Commodity prices


have recently begun to stabilize, but are still much lower than before the market disruption, and system costs have
significantly increased. The West Coast is suffering the strongest impacts due to historical reliance on Chinese markets
for recyclables.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 8 of 118







Across our state, region, and nation, recyclable materials without a market demand are collected through curbside
recycling programs. Washington Material Recovery Facilities (MRFs) are working to achieve the drastically lower
contamination rate. Conveyor belts have been slowed, separation equipment fine»tuned, and additional labor has been
added. New equipment is on the way and new markets are being developed, but both will take time. It's not safe to


store large quantities of recyclables inside for fire code reasons and not feasible to store them outside clue to our wet


climate. Some communities have made changes to their recycling programs to deal with the effects of the ban and
recyclables have been diverted to landfillsin others to prevent fire and health code issues.


The ban presents an opportunity to review curbside recycling programs and improve their quality. Communication


about the new market realities across the recycling supply chain is essential to ensure high quality recyclables that will
have a market. The list of the materials accepted in local recycling plans may need to be modified both in the short and
longer terms. Reducing contamination in commingled recyclables collected at the curb is essential.


What can you do to help? Check with your local recycling program to learn which materials are collected in the
commingled bin through your program. Ensure that anything you recycle is on that list. Ensuring everything that goes


into the bin is recyclable is crucial for reducing contamination. Source separation of recyclables from garbage is the first


step. Recyclables must also be empty, clean, and dry. Ifyou do not know whether something can be recycled, throw it in


the garbage. WHEN IN DOUBT, THROW ITOUT! Recycling programs collect too many materials that contaminate the
entire material stream: htt s: ‘ article we-rec cle-so-much-trash-its-created-an-international-crisis


Fixing Recycling in Washington:


Recycle Right Education: we need a statewide education and messaging campaign to reduce contamination, ensure


recyclables are clean, empty, and dry, and emphasize "when in doubt, throw it out.”
Recycling programs: make recycling easier and better by simplifying and unifying recycling program material lists to


those items that truly have value and can be truly recycled. Anything else is contamination.


Increase Transparency: recycling is not free and it never was. We need to require transparency in waste/recycling/yard


waste billings and create a transparent process for management and disposal of recyclables without a market.


Reduce Contamination: we need to prioritize real quality recycling over quantity and arbitrary/misleading diversion
goals. We need to emphasize source separation of recyclables, keep hazardous and non-recyclable wastes out of the
recycling stream, and fully fund our solid waste system.


Materials banned under National Sword: A Comprehensive list of banned materials is available on wrra.org. The ban includes


many of solid waste and recyclables, including mixed paper, plastics 3-7 (including most postconsumer plastics), metals, and


other materials commonly collected by U.S. recycling programs. Always check with your local recycling program to learn which


materials can be collected through your program. Ensure that anything you recycle is on that list, and is clean, empty and dry.


Ensuring everything that goes into the bin is recyclable is crucial. Ifyou do not know whether or not something can be recycled,


throw it in the garbage. WHEN IN DOUBT,THROW ITOUT!


About WRRA: The Washington Refuse and Recycling Association (WRRA)represents the private sector solid waste industry in


Washington. WRRAmember companies and the solid waste industry serve a vital role in public health, safety, and environmental
protection. WRRA members are the largest real recyclers in Washington. Solid Waste by the numbers:


14,700 people employed in Washington's waste management and remediation industry during 2016. (Washington State


Employee Security Department)


For every million dollars generated by Washington's solid waste industry, $2.17 million is generated in the economy


through the multiplier effect. (Office of Financial Management)


For every 10jobs in Washington's solid waste industry, an additional 17.01 jobs are created outside the industry. (Office


of Financial Management)


For more information please contact WRRA Executive Director Brad Lovaas at (360) 943-8859 or


brad@wrra.org. Most recent version and other resources always available on wrra.org


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 9 of 118







China Sword Impact — Residential


Municipality: Mill Creek


WM MRF Used: Cascade Recycling Center (CRC)


1. Increased MRF Processing Costs Exglanatory Notes


a Previous WUTC Processing Cost per Ton $ 78.99 Based on previous WUTCtariffforCRC


b Current WUTC Processing Cost per Ton $ 92.86 Per May 2018 WUTCtariffforCRC


Increased Cost per Ton $ 13.87 [b - a]


d Annual Residential Recycling Tons 1,804 2017 actual resi recycling tons


e Total Increased Processing Cost — Residential $ 25,021 [cxd]


f Total Residential Accounts 5,167 Total accounts as nf4/30/2018


g Monthly Rate Increase per Residential Account S 0.40 [2/f/12]


2. Change in Commodity Values


h Q4—2017Average Commodity Value per Ton $ 6691 Per Q44017 reported CRCcommodity values


i Q1—2018Average Commodity Value per Ton $ 51.88 PerQ1-2018 reported CRCcommodity values


j Revenue Loss per Ton $ 15.03 [h - i]


k Annual Residential Recycling Tons 1,804 2017actua/ resi recycling mris


I Total Commodity Value Decrease $ 27,114 [jxk]


m Total Residential Accounts 5,167 Total accounts as nf4/30/2018


n Monthly Rate Increase per Residential Account $ 044 [I/m/12]


3. Total Monthly Adjustment Requested‘ . [g + n J


"‘Excludes any other adjustments that may be necessary due to contract requirements.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 10 of 118







China Sword Impact - Multifamily & Commercial


Municipality: Mill Creek


WM MRF Used: Cascade Recycling Center (CRC)


1. Increased MRF Processing Costs Exglanatagg Notes


a Previous WUTC Processing Cost per Ton 3 78.99 Based on previous wurc rarifffarCRC


b Current WUTC Processing Cost per Ton S 92.86 Per May 2018 WUTCtarif/forCRC


Increased Cost per Ton 5 13.87 [b - a]


d Annual Multifamily & Commercial Recycling Tons 1,153 2017actual multifamily & commercial recycling tons


e Total Increased Processing Cost - MF & CM S 15,992 [cxd]


f Total Annual Multifamily & Commercial MSW Vards 52,947 Total za17 MSW yardsfor muln/amlly;


used 100.10 pounds/MSW yard as the conversion factor


g Rate Increase per Multifamily & Commercial MSW Yard S 0.30 [e/f]


2. Change in Commodity Values


h Q4-2017 Average Commodity Value per Ton S 66.91 Per Q4-2o17repaned CRL‘commodity values


i Q1-2018 Average Commodity Value per Ton S $1.88 Per 0142018 reported CRCcommadiry values


j Revenue Loss per Ton S 15.03 [h - i]


k Annual Multifamily & Commercial Recycling Tons 1,153 2D17a:IuaI multifamily & commercial recycling fans


I Total Commodity Value Decrease 5 17,330 [jxk]


m Total Annual Multifamily & Commercial MSW Yards 52,947 Total 2o.17Msw yardsfor multifamily & commercial;


used 100.10 pounds/MSWyarr1 as the canversianfactar


n Rate Increase per Multifamily & Commercial MSW Yard S 0.33 /l/m]


3. Total Yardage Rate Adjustment Requested* . [g + n 1


‘Excludes any other adjustments that may be necessary due to contract requirements.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 11 of 118







ThisFAQwas developed by the Washington Refuse& RecyclingAssociation


3 Things to Remember:
1. You should put your garbage and recycling at the curb (or whatever your normal routine is) and it willbe collected just like it


always has been.
2. Ifyou do not know whether or not something can be recycled, throw it in the garbage. WHENIN DOUBT,THROW ITOUT!
3. Every city and county recycling program is different. Checkwith your local solid waste program for the best information


available speci?c to your area.


Freguently Asked Questions(FAQ)


Isn't there always a place for recycled material? Why do we rely on China?
The recycling system is 100% dependent on a marketplace for recyclable materials. Whether it is plastic, paper, or aluminum, we are


only able to offer a service to collect and process it for you, if in turn, someone is going to buy it from us and use it for manufacturing


or other purposes. A strong recycling system is good for the environment and for the economy. Today's situation is unique because
China is a primary source of manufactured products and packaging. Their policy change transpired quickly, something that is


challenging for infrastructure services like solid waste and recycling collections and processing because it is so complex.


Why do Chinese policies affect my recycling service?
Washington, Oregon, and California are particularly impacted by China's policy change because the West Coast is active in trade with


China and other countries where imports/exports are made easier because of where they are located. Washington's recycling rate


hovers around 50%, well above the national average, in part because of its proximity to China. China is also one of the biggest


manufacturers in the world — named the #1 Most Competitive Manufacturing Nation in 2016 by Deloitte, a global financial and
consulting firm and consuming 2/3of all recyclable materials that are collected worldwide.


What has been done since China announced the changes that will impact the system here?


We have been searching for markets, both domestically and internationally, and fine-tuning our processing practices here at home.
Internationally, we have representatives overseas in China working with processors, manufacturers, and the Chinese government.


We are also developing and searching for new markets across the globe and in the United States to ensure as many materials as


possible have a place to go. Working in conjunction with state and local agencies, we have been actively seeking solutions to


strengthen and improve our recycling stream since China announced the new policy. One domestic example, among many, has


been in our members’ investments at their facilities to better sort materials so that the recyclable materials can be diverted


efficiently and effectively. Our members are adapting in real-time, adjusting routes and working with our localgovernment partners.


Industry-wide, up and down the west coast, we have been focused on addressing this current challenge and ensuring that in the
long-term, the recycling system is stronger than ever.


Every city and county may have differences in the system in place, but speci?c actions that we have taken system-wide include:
0 slowed down the conveyor belts that carry potential recyclable goods past people and machines so they can be sorted and


re-sorted with a higher level of precision
o hired more people so that there are more eyes and hands picking non-recyclable contaminants out of the recycle stream


0 decreased the tolerances of the machines which are automated versions of what the employees are doing so that they


reject more non-recyclable contaminants from the recycle stream


0 overseas, we are actively seeking new markets for recyclables and continue to work with Chinese partners to secure outlets


for the most materials possible under the new restrictions.


How long will this situation last?


At this point, it's unclear, but we have received no indication that the change in China's policies are temporary. The ban on unsorted
paper, certain plastics, and other material goes into effect on January 1, 2018. Along with the ban, China also announced stringent


new contaminant standards. In recycling, "contaminants” are non-permittable materials that are mixed in with the desirable


materials, something that everyone in the recycling system works to prevent, but because of the nature of the solid waste stream,


can be very challenging to manage. After January 1, 2018, China willonly accept materials with a contaminant rate of 0.3%,


something that is virtually unattainable. The impacts of all these polices willbe felt before they are implemented, as shipments can


take a month or more to reach China. We are actively searching for new markets and solutions, but as everyone realizes, the solid
waste stream never stops and recycled materials are already accumulating at various facilities.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 12 of 118







Many long-term solutions revolve around the nature of the recycle stream itself — we need to keep materials separated so that the
mistakenly-placed hamburger wrapper does not mix with the carefully-sorted newspaper. Ifyou want to help at home, you should


re-read the requirements of the recycle program in your community and be diligent about what is included in your recycle bin.


WHENIN DOUBT,THROW IT OUT.


If my recycled material is going to a landfill,will I be getting a "refund" toward what I pay for recycling services?


No, system costs willactually increase. The same amount of material is being collected and handled in an environmentally-


responsible way. We are recycling as much material as we can, but must do so more slowly in order to meet stringent new quality


standards, which increases costs and results in less overall material to market. The situation in most local areas varies, but because
disposal costs are based on the weight of items going to a landfill,the costs of the system, including recycling, willactually increase.


it is too early at this point to try to predict what the impact on rates could be. But we believe in the strength of the system and we


are focused on solutions that minimize the impact of this situation on the environment, the economy and our customers.


What will be the impacts in terms of smell, dust, and the long-term life of the land?ll because of this?


Land?llsare managed carefully and heavily regulated. Washington has excellent landfillcapacity which will last 100 years with only


existing facilities.We intend to resolve this situation long before there is a capacity issue at landfills.


Aren't there other places in the U.S. that will use recycled materials?


Yes, there are places in the U.S.and around the world that use recycled materials. Those places already have a stream of recyclables.


For example, in Chicago there are outlets for recyclable material and they receive it from the cities, counties, and states nearest to


where those outlets are located. Those facilities are at capacity because of what they collect from local programs. We are actively


seeking new "customers” for our recycled materials in India, other countries in North America, and throughout Asia. In the


meantime, the stream of recycled ”product” generated here does not slow down or stop.


Can individual customers store their own recycling until the situation is improved?


No. For purposes of sanitation, public health and safety, and fire safety, we encourage people to stick to their normal routine of
putting garbage and recyclables at the curb (or however you normally manage garbage day). Ifyou want to help, please pay


attention to the sticker on your co-mingled recycle bin or other information you have from your provider as to what can be recycled.


Ifyou are unsure — throw it in the garbage. WHENIN DOUBT,THROWIT OUT.


Recycling signi?cantly reduces our carbon footprint. will this crisis make global warming worse?


We have one of the strongest recycling systems in the country and we are confident we willfind a solution to this situation long


before it could ever significantly impact our region's commitment to reducing our carbon footprint.


Why can't we set aside recycled materials at a new location in Washington until we can find a marketplace to re-use them?


Recyclable materials are considered solid waste and are heavily regulated for a reason. There is not enough available warehousing in


the state for safe storage especially since many recyclables are highly flammable. They cannot and should not be "set aside"
anywhere that hasn't been vetted extensively under our regulatory system, which prioritizes public health and safety. The solid


waste system is strong and intact and we should dispose of all items safely while we seek solutions to the issue at-hand with the


recycling market.


Has something like this ever happened before?
No. This is the ?rst time a policy change overseas has had such swift and direct impacts to recycling. But our system is strong, and we


are con?dent we will?nd solutions in the middle and long-term. In the short-term, it's crucial that a problem in the international


recycling markets does not become multiple problems for public health and safety. The solid waste collection, handling, and


processing infrastructure to responsibly handle these materials exists and we will rely on it until solutions can be put in place.


What is the federal government's position on this situation? Should I contact my Senator or Representative?


In collaboration with our colleagues on the national stage, those of us at the state level have been in contact with federal


stakeholders and internationally with the World Trade Organization. We are working hard to share information and to determine


the best ways to protect our recycling system while resetting the market. An analogy is flying a plane while repairing it! What we


would bene?t from most is time, but nothing is affecting how committed we are to getting back on track.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 13 of 118







vn:-rs MAuAa:uuiu1


WASTE MANAGEMENT


720 4“ Ave, Suite 400


Kirkland WA 98033


Ms. Gina Hortillosa
Director of Public Works and Development Services
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main St.
Mill Creek, WA 98012


RE: Amendment to Contract — Recycling Rate Relief, Contamination Service Charge
and Protocol, and Updated Recyclables List


Dear Ms. Hortillosa:


The purpose of this Letter of Understanding (“LOU”) is to amend the
Comprehensive Garbage, Recyclables, and Organics Collection Contract between
the City of MillCreek (“City”) and Waste Management of Washington, Inc. (“WM”).


City and WMagree to modify rates in Attachment B, attached hereto, effective


— to (1) compensate WMfor increased costs of recycling as a result
of uncontrollable global recycling market changes, and (2) add a contamination
service charge for residential and commercial customers. Additionally, the Parties
agree to amend Attachment C, Recyclables List, as attached hereto.


The Parties also agree to add a new contamination protocol for all customers,
intended to change customer behavior and reduce and/or eliminate contamination
in the recycling stream. The contamination protocol shall include three
observations of contamination as noted by WMstaff before a contamination
service charge per container per instance may be charged to customers. The
contamination service charge shall be subject to the annual CPI.


Waste Management will recognize the City of Mill Creek’s partnership in supporting
recycling and take this into consideration when negotiating a new contract.


By signing below, each of the City and Waste Management acknowledges its
approval and acceptance of the terms of this LOUand acknowledges that this LOU:
(a) creates a legally binding obligation upon the parties, (b) shall be governed and
constructed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington regardless of
any conflict of law provisions, (c) sets forth the entire agreement between the


Page 1 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 14 of 118







City and WMwith respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior
negotiations, representations, understandings and agreements with respect to the
subject matter hereof, and (d) may be executed in two or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.


Sincerely,


Mindy Rostami
Senior Manager, Strategic Contracting and Municipal Le:galgAf:fairs
Waste Management of Washington, Inc.


Acknowledged and agreed upon by:


CITYor MILLCREEK ‘SM/TASTEMNAGEMENTor:
WASHINGTON,INC.


,....


Its:
i


M


'


V


Its:


Page 2 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 15 of 118







(Attachments on following pages)


Attachment B
Contractor Rates


Page 3 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 16 of 118







City of Mill Creek EffectiveOctober 1, 2019


. . °°':::°"
@_


s 3.74


s no.4:
Extraset-outs (32 gallone uivalent)


Re clin - one 35-5::lion Cart
Re clin - one 64-llon CartWeekly


Residential Re clin - one 96-y: llon Cart
Recycling Eachextra 64-llon Rec clin Can t


Curbside Eachextra 96- IlonRec clin Can J 1


Recycling- No Garbage Service (64 Gal Default, 35- or 96- availableupon


Or nics-one 64-9: IonCart
Weekly


Residential


Organics
Curbside
Service


Ornics - three96-gr.llonCarts
Eachextra set-out be ond two 32 ysllon - uiv.


M


Organics - No Garbage Service (96 Gal Default,35- or64- available
request)


upon
5 10.38


Miscellaneous Fees:
~ 8.25


xn:‘:.:‘‘~ 11.‘,
V V


‘:3 1. 32. 1
Garbae On Call -«each35-9: , w


e 7.70
Organics On Call.-‘each96-9: Honcan(35- or 64 availableu 13.22


'


=
‘


7.70
5.59


25.00
4.39
8.80
4.39


Drive-inChar ,«


Overwei tlOversize.container(er,
‘


Redelive ofcontainers?
Can Cleanin (er cart. errevent)


27.54
44.09
27.54


l 27.54


*lncludesM\veel<lyrecycle


Page 4 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 17 of 118







Commercial Service Rates
_


cl


Weekly One 20 ;.s llon Mini-Can insert in Gnrba Can
Commercial


Can and .
Cart 10.32


3 10.97


8.80


3.23


Collection


l6.89


Z\IIV)N%WB-:100_.3‘."IIINI“3I0:93‘03..


28.8 S 39.70


anF’at:wM


8.80


Weekly
Commercial s 274.46
Detachable CE] 5 345.66


Container ICE
(compn ctcd) 5 627.554 Cubic Yard Container


1


‘ s 899.67


3 Cubic Yard 3 icku s/week
3 Cubic Yard 4 '


Commercial
‘ . S 91.07


Detachable :%nn
Container C s 273.26


(loose)
EH3


.
s 391.30


1.5 Cubic Yard 4 ickus/week
12?
ICE 5 159.72


2Cubic Yard 3 icku s/week 8 ' s 342.58 5 479.22
s 456.78 3 638.96
s 570.93 5 793.71
s 158.59
s 317.20 s 453.34


- ~ $ 475.113 s 680.78
634.47 S 907. 74


S 1 134.67
S 280.22


3 Cubic Yard 5
4 Cubic Yard I
4 Cubic Yard 2 icku s/week '


1


793.08
189.13


CEHEI 378.29 s 560.47
567.45 s 340.72


CEE 756.61 5 1120.97
CH!!! 945.75 s 1401.20
CHE] 219.64 s 356.28


'


1 .
4 1


1 " s 712.53
9


658.99 5 1068.90.~ 1 . {El 5 1425.20
6Cubic Yard 5. iéku 3/week {EH}?! 1: 1781.51


LEE!!! 5 449.30
5 899.65


[CE] 5 1 49.47
5 1799.32
5 2 49.14


Extraloosc cubic ard - ricku


1»-’bicYard er ickuCommercial 29.73


Detachable 1 5 Chibic Yard er ick 1.1 38.81


Container 45.48


Extra Service ‘ 60.90
(Off Service 4 Cubic ick u V 73. ll


Commercial
Detachable
Container
Extra Lm


(On Service
Day)


lEE


Contamin tion Charo - 1.5 Cubic Yard


Page 5 of8


90.49
ll L89


Day)


29.98
36.67
52.08


81 .66
S l03.07


72.22
98.98


5 l l8.78


$ 252.73


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 18 of 118







Service Level Cha e Clta e_—E
Commercial


Drop-box
Collection


n/a n/a
n/a n/a
ma n/a
n/a n/a


n/a
n/a


Service Level Fee Fee Cha c


_
Temporary [dim
Collection
Hauling


-
Service Level Fee Rental Rental


1 Yard detachablecontainer
1.5 Yard detachablecontainer
2 Yard detachable container
3 Yard detachablecontainer
4 Yard detachablecontainer
6 Yard detachablecontainer
8 Yard detachable container
Non-comacted 10cubic ard Dro Box


wa5a9e_§:§{9e9e9eav9(n§n


Temporary
Collection
Container


Rental
and Delivery


Non-co acted 30 cubic‘i:ird*Dro‘Box
Non-co acted 40icubic andDre Box


Dro » Box + Tem ora Container Miscellaneous Fees: ——
3 27.54


Stand-b Time er minute 7
i S 1.74


Rear/Side-loadacker + driver2 .
Front-loadacker + driver . $ 121.82
Dro --boxTruck + driver
AdditionalLabor er aerson


Page 6 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 19 of 118







Attachment C
Recyclables List


TYPE INSTRUCTIONS
Glass - Food or beverage Remove lids; Leaded glass:


Containers empty of all food windows, mirrors,
or liquids. Labels baking dishes, storage
do not need to be dishes, ceramic,
removed. Zplateps,glassware,


Fstorage/canning jars.


*7‘jshreddedpaper;Office paper, Remove plastic N


copy paper, bags (exterior or -paper envelopes with
construction interior), plastic bubblewrap liners,
paper packagi;;1lg',’l‘li‘i;insulationliners or


metal,‘L


electronics,
magnets,];_twine,
straws, li’ds?fand


envelopesmade from
plastic (Tyvek);


I laminatedspaper,
stickers, labels,
photos, carbon paper,


0 Newspaper and
paper inserts


o Magazines and
paper inserts


any food or i


o Catalogs
, Cardboard liquids. Mustbe receipts,paper. Mail and paper‘ ,‘;::affixedto magnets;


inserts *awind‘ows:j;:i,ijii,,pape,rvTwax or poly-coated. Envelopes “envelopesokay. cups, ‘cartons,or .
_,: Paperbags aseptic containers,


;;:b}%;;,:i;;Cereal,‘i=cookie pet f°9dbags’ mlxed


ir;=wé;ndcracker materialbags; wet or


boxes ,
r soiledpaper; paper


.


pépaperppptowel
T with large amounts of


“tubes
paint or glue.


o Toilet paper:N


tubes


,


‘


o Tissupeboxes
Qfr:


N


o Nor‘i,lf-lifoil
"f wrapping paper


- Kraft paper bags
or boxes
Cardboard boxes


o Cardboard
packaging


0 Cardboard
beverage ‘flats’
or nursery ‘flats’


Flatten all
cardboard.
Remove all
interior
packaging, block
foam, packing
peanuts and
exterior plastic


Waxed cardboard,
wet cardboard


Cardboard


Page 7 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 20 of 118







,pl'asticE);i
V Dairy tubs, e.g.
Wbutter, yogurt,


icottageiiichee?e


wrap. Do not
bundle with tape
or twine.
External tape
okay. Oversized
cardboard can be
placed next to
card/ container.
Must be dry.
Remove all
exterior
packaging;
remove lids;
empty of,.al,l_food
or liquids’.‘Labels
do notf“"‘l’ineedto be
removed.


Tin, aluminum
and steel food or
beverage
containers


PET/PETEbottles;;:,:
(#1 plastic)


’


HDPE
bottlesljugs (#2


Elasticbottles


V


"witghiplastic
¥’:.screviv;}f-jfonelids,are


it lidsare
screwed backon,
removeall other
lids; remove


<#5ls>‘lastn ;ZiiE¥Y.V§a,e{?qp.fiy.1§f
orother debris.
Labels do not
need to be
removed.


Page 8 of 8


Alurninumfoil and
‘trays; sharp or greasy


r metal; batteries;
"’propanetanks,


m'icrowaves;
electricalcords; cell
phonesijiciar,snow
chains. Emptyaerosol
cans, Metal
apphances


#3, #4, #6 & #7
plastics, plastic bags,
plastic cups, plastic
film; plastic bottles
that contained HHW
listed materials; deli,
bakery and produce
clamshell containers;
loose lids — any size;
plant trays; PVC;
large rigid plastic
(outdoor furniture,
laundry baskets,
swimming pools, toys,
etc.); hoses;
landscaping/sprinkler
tubing.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Waste Management (Michelle Metzler, Public Sector Manager) Page 21 of 118







.
in


)
CITY or


Agenda Item i/_
w A s H 1 N G T o_N Meeting Date: September 10, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City ofMill Creek. Washington


AGENDA ITEM: HOUSE BILL 1406 - AN ACT RELATING TO ENCOURAGING
INVESTMENTS IN AFFORDABLE AND SUPPORTIVE
HOUSING.


PROPOSED MOTION:


None- Discussion Item Only


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


In the 2019 legislative session, the state approved a local revenue sharing program for local
governments by providing up to a 0.0l46% local sales and use tax credited against the state sales
tax for housing investments. available in increments of 0.0073%, depending on the imposition of


other local taxes and whether your county also takes advantage. The tax credit is in place for up to


20 years and can be used for acquiring, rehabilitating. or constructing affordable housing;


operations and maintenance of new affordable or supportive housing facilities; and, for smaller
cities, rental assistance. The funding must be spent on projects that serve persons whose income is
at or below sixty percent of the area median income. Cities can also issue bonds to finance the


authorized projects.


This local sales tax authority is a credit against the state sales tax, so it does not increase the sales


tax for the consumer. There are tight timelines that must be met to access this funding source — the


first is January 31, 2020 to pass a resolution of intent. The tax ordinance must then be adopted by


July 27, 2020 to qualify for a credit.


Attached is a publication from MSRC that provides additional information on HB 1406.


Previous Council Discussion
HB 1406 was briefly discussed by the City Council at the September 3. 2019 Council meeting.


During the discussion, several questions were raised. Staff has had a chance to review the attached


MSRC document as well as other infomiation and provides responses along with the


questions/topicswhich are listed below:


o If the City is interested in receiving funds, does it matter whether or not the City or


County adopts its resolution and/or imposing legislation before the County?


0 The answer is yes. Ifthe County adopts their implementing legislation first, they


will receive slightly more revenue than if the City acts first. The City would


receive the same amount either way. To maximize the resources available, it


would make sense to work cooperatively with the County and adopt the City’s


implementing legislation after the County. The intent legislation can be adopted


in any order.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 22 of 118







o Can HB 1406 funds be provided to an agency like Alliance for Housing Affordability
(AHA)? Does AHA have the ability to allocate funds to residents within an agency? Are


there other agencies besides AHA that could use the City funds?
o Yes. The legislation states that the funds can be used to ?nance loans or provide


grants to a nonpro?t organization or a public housing authority. Thus, HB 1406
funds could be directed to AHA or the Housing Authority of Snohomish County


(HASCO). and other nonprofit groups that provide affordable housing.


0 Could HB 1406 funds support the efforts/mission of the Housing Affordability Regional


Task Force (HART) being led by County Executive Sommers?
0 Yes. County Executive Somers has sent a letter to cities requesting that cities in


Snohomish County do two things: 1) pass a resolutionof intent to receive the
affordable housing tax credit by January 27.2020; and 2) Continue to participate
in HART. Please note that HART has not yet released a report or any


recommendationson a strategy to address housing affordability. However, it is


highly likely that any strategy will need funding for implementation.
0 How are other cities going to use their allocations?


0 Staff has not yet had a chance to discuss this topic. If any information is received
regarding other cities‘ plans for the funds, they will be shared at the Council
meeting.


Next Steps
If the City Council wants to consider receiving the HB l406 sales tax credit, a resolutionof intent


will need to be passed by January 27, 2020. A resolution of intent could be prepared and be


brought back to the Council at a future Council meeting. Please note that the resolution of intent


would not commit the City to imposing the sales tax credit, only make the City eligible to do so.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Discussion Item Only


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment A: MRSC Article


RespectfullySubmitted:


?
lvlichaelG. Ciaravino
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 23 of 118







'/ZMRSC
LocalGovernment Success


SHB 1406: Understanding the Affordable Housing Sales Tax


Credit


July17.2019 byToniNelson
Category: Housing, New Legislationand Regulations,Sales and Use Taxes


Editor's note: Due to the high-profileand fast-moving nature of this topic, we willbe updating thispost withnew


informationand examplesas they become available.Readers are encouraged to bookmark thispage and check back


frequently,or eligiblegovernment agencies may also submit questions about SHB 7406 to our AskMRSC


service. Recent updatesinclude:


August 28, 20 79:Clari?edtiming of adoption of enacting ordinances and calculationof maximum distribution


caps, emphasizingneed for counties to adopt theirordinances first to maximize revenues; added Paci?c County


ordinance.


August 20, 2079: Added linksto WSACresources and Pierce County ordinance.


August 8, 2079: Updatedrevenue estimate worksheet with O7 2079 sales tax data from DOR; added sample


resolutions of intent.


july 24, 2019: Added examplesof resolutions of intent.


The 2019 legislativesession produceda plethoraof bills,but SHB 1406 has generated significantbuzz as it will


providea new affordablehousing revenue stream for those counties, cities, and towns that choose to participate.


Thissales tax option is actuallya credit against the state sales tax rate of 6.5%.so it willnot increase the tax rate for


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 24 of 118







consumers. However.cities, towns. and counties have a limitedtime to takeadvantageof this option and must act


ratherquicklyifthey wish to participate.


It is imperative that cities and counties communicate and coordinate closely to implementthis legislation,or


else both cities and counties may lose out on some revenues. See the "tax rates for participatingcities"and


"annualmaximum distributioncap"sections belowfor more information.


Inorder to understand the foundation of this bill,it's important to understand what isconsidereda participatingand
non-participatingcity or county. A“participating”city or county is one that chooses to impose the affordablehousing
sales tax credit providedin SHB1406 and completes the requiredsteps for adoptionwithinthe next 12months,


whilea “nonparticipating"city or county is one that chooses not to implementthe affordable housingsales tax credit.


In this blogwe discussthis complicatedpiece of legislationand some of the keydecisionsthat eligiblelocal


governments willneed to makewithinthe next few months.


How Can This Revenue Be Used?
The intent of the legislationis to encourage localgovernment investments in affordableand supportive housing,and


as such, the funds willbe considereda restricted revenue subject to reporting requirements and audit review for


compliance.The use of this sales tax partiallydepends upon the size of your jurisdiction:


For counties over 400,000 populationand cities over 100,000 population:The funds may only be used for (a)


acquiring,rehabilitating.or constructingaffordablehousing.whichmay includenew units withinan existingstructure


or facilitiesprovidingsupportive housingservices under RCW71.24.385 (behavioral health organizations);OR (b)


operations and maintenance costs of new units of affordableor supportive housing.


For counties under 400,000 populationand cities under 100,000 population:Thefunds may be used for the


same purposes listedabove, but they may also be used to providerentalassistance to tenants that are at or below
60% of the median income of the county or city that is imposingthe tax.


Forany cityor county, they may finance loansor grants to nonprofitorganizationor publichousingauthoritiesto


carry out the purposes of the billand may pledgethe tax proceedsfrom SHB1406 for repayment of bonds in


accordancewith debt limitationsimposedby the state constitution or statute.


Additionally,any participatingcityor county may enter into an interlocalagreement withother cities, counties,


and/orhousingauthorities to pooland allocate the tax revenues received under SHB 1406 to fulfillthe intent of the


legislation.


How Much Revenue WillWe Receive?


The answer to this question depends on whether your entity has a “qualifyinglocaltax” (see below), the local


economy, and the calculationof the revenue cap includedin SHB 1406. Participatingjurisdictionswillreceive


revenues for 20 years, and the amount that you receive annuallywillbe equivalentto either 0.0073% or 0,0146%


of taxable retailsales in your jurisdiction,up to an annual maximum distributioncap that is based on FY2019 taxable
retailsales.


Tax rates for participating counties


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 25 of 118







Counties do not need a “qualifyinglocaltax" and willautomaticallyreceive the maximum 0.0146% rate withinthe


unincorporatedareas, up to the annual maximum distributioncap described later.Withinthe boundariesof each city


or town, you willreceive 0.0146%.minus the rate beingreceivedby the city/town. Here are the variables:


0 Ifthe citychooses not to participatebut the county does participate,the county willreceive the full0.0146%


withinthe city boundaries.


- Ifa cityelects to participatebut does not have a “qualifyinglocaltax" (see below). the citywillreceive the
0.0073% “halfshare"and the county willalso receive a 0.0073% half share withinthe city boundaries.


0 Ifa cityelects to participateand imposes a “qualifyinglocaltax" by the deadline, the citywillreceive the full


0.0146% share and the county willnot receive any revenues withinthe city boundaries.


As the legislationis currentlywritten, ifthe county elects not to participate,cities locatedwithinsaidcounty that have


not enacted a qualifyinglocaltax willnot receive SHB1406 revenues after the first year.


Tax rates for participating cities


The rate your city receive dependson whether it enacts a localqualifyingtax (see below) priorto the deadlineof July


27, 2020, as wellas whether or not your county participates.


- Forcities that impose a qualifyinglocaltax by the deadline, you willreceive the maximum 0.0146°/o rate, up to the


annual maximum distributioncap describedbelow, regardlessof whether your county participates.


o For cities that do not have a qualifyinglocaltax, you willreceive the 0.0073% “halfshare."up to the annual


maximum distributioncap, but onlyifyour county also elects to participate.


Ifyour county declares it willnot participate or does not adopt the requiredresolution of intent by the end of


January 2020, you willreceive the full 0.0146% throughJuly27, 2020, but after that you willnot receive any


further revenues. Indiscussionswithboth Association of WashingtonCities (AWC)and the Department of Revenue


it is believedthat this is due to a draftingerror in the bill.AWCdoes not anticipate this scenario but asksthat you let


them know ifyour city finds itselfin this situation!


Annualmaximum distribution cap


SHB1406 sets a cap on the maximum sales tax revenues to be credited to localgovernment withinany state fiscal


year (July1to June30). The cap willbe calculatedbased upon the jurisdiction'staxable retailsalesduringthe state's


2019 fiscalyear (July1,2018 -June 30, 2019). Justlikethe state shared revenue cycle.distributionswillstart July1,


and the state willcease distributionuntilthe beginningof the next fiscalcycleifat any time duringthe fiscalperiod


your distributionsmeet the cap.


It is very important that counties adopt the enacting legislationprior to cities and towns, or else the counties may


lose out on some revenues. (This appliesonlyto the enabling"legislation"— the order of adoptionof the "resolutions


of intent" does not matter.) Ifthe county adopts the imposing legislationpriorto the city(s)withinits boundaries, the


county's revenue cap willbe calculatedbased on the total countywidetaxable retailsales in FY2019.includingboth


the unincorporatedand incorporatedareas of the county. But ifany city adopts their enablingordinancebefore the


county, that city's taxable retailsales willbe subtracted from the county's taxable retailsales.resultingin the county's


annual maximum distributioncap beingreducedfor the entire 20-year state tax sharingperiod.(See section 4(a) of


the legislation.)


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 26 of 118







It'salso important to remember that retailsales can fluctuate from year to year dependingupon a number of
economic factors, so your revenues beinggeneratedfrom this sales tax credit (particularlyin the earlyyears when


some jurisdictionsmightnot hit their annual caps)may fluctuate as well.


Revenue Estimates


We have developeda worksheetfor your revenue forecastingthat was updatedon August9.2019 to include02


2018-01 2019 taxablesaleswithprojections for both the 0.0073% and 0.0146% tax creditoptions. Thisdata


comes from DOR's RetailSales for Cities and Counties.


How Do We Impose This New Tax Option?
To receive the affordablehousingsales tax credit.you must:


- Pass a resolution of intent by January 27, 2020 that indicatesintention to impose the sales tax credit at the


maximum capacity by a simplemajorityvote of the legislativebody. Thisis the singlemost important step in being


able to receive thissales tax creditoption. Ifthis deadline is missed, there are no other opportunitiesto access the


tax. Here is a s_ampleresolutionof intent that has been preparedby PacificaLawGroup for the Associationof


WashingtonCities (AWC)that willassist you in this process.Alsosee the sampleresolutionsat the end of this


article.


- Adopt legislationto authorize by July27, 2020 to impose the maximum capacity of the affordablesales tax


credit.Thisstep must be completedin order to continue to access this sales tax creditwhether you decide to


impose a qualifyinglocaltax or not. See the examplesat the end of this article.


Sicne the billexplicitlyrequiresboth a “resolutionof intent."whichmust be adopted byJanuary 27, 2020, and


“legislationto authorizethe maximum capacityof the tax" (an ordinancefor most jurisdictions,but for some counties


this may be a resolution), whichmust be adoptedbyJuly27.2020, it is our recommendationthat these documents


be adopted separately.


What Is a QualifyingLocalTax?


A“qualifyinglocaltax" (QLT)is a localproperty or sales tax that a city has imposed,separatelyfrom SHB 1406, to


address affordablehousingor related issues. Thisprovisionwithinthe billonlyappliesto cities and towns, and it


allowsthem to double the sales tax credit.


The QLT options are:


0 Anaffordablehousinglevy RCW 84.52.105);


- Asales and use tax for affordablehousing ( );


- A levylidlift (RCW §4.55.050) that is restrictedsolelyto affordablehousing;or


o Amental health and chemicaldependencysales tax (RCW 82,14.460i, whichis onlyauthorizedby statute for


those cities of at least 30,000 populationlocatedwithinPierce County.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 27 of 118







Accordingto our data, there are currentlyonlysix cities that have implementedat least one of these qualifyinglocal


taxes: Bellingham,Ellensburg.Olympia,Seattle.Tacoma, and Vancouver. Port Angeleshas alsoplaceda qualifying


localtax on the ballotfor November 2019 — see the resolutionat the end of this articlewhichalso providesa good


analysisof election timing and costs.


Allof the qualifyinglocaltaxes requirevoter approvalwitha simplemajorityvote (with the exception of the mental


health and chemicaldependency sales tax) and may be presentedat any special,primary,or generalelection.(For


more detailed informationon any of these qualifyinglocaltaxes, refer to our RevenueGuideforCitiesandTowns.)


Decidingto present a qualifyinglocaltax before the voters in order to gain the fulltax creditwillrequire some timing


considerations, as the legislationrequiresthat the qualifyinglocaltax must be “instated"(which DOR is interpreting


to mean “approvedbyvoters") within12months of the effective date of SHB1406. Thisdeadline isJuly27, 2020.


Thedeadlinefor placementon the generalelection ballotis fast approaching(August6), and the onlyother elections


before the July2020 deadlineare the specialelections in Februaryand April.(See our KeyDeadlinesfor voted sales


and property taxes in the recentlyupdatedRevenue Guidesfor Cities!iownsand Counties).


When WillWe Start to Receive Revenues from SHB 1406?


The Department of Revenue (DOR) typicallyrequiresa 75-day notice for sales tax rate changes,but since this is a


sales tax credit (not a new sales tax) it willtherefore only require a 30-day wait period.The creditwilltake effect on


the first dayof the month followingthe 30-day period(RCW 82.14.055(2)). Forexample.ifyou adopt the resolution


of intent and then the enablinglegislation(ordinance/resolution)duringAugust2019.the tax willtake effect on


October 1.Thesales tax revenues from October willbe remittedbyretailersto DORby the 25th of the following


month (November), and you willreceive your firstdistributionof this tax crediton your end-of-month December


disbursement from the State Treasurer's office.Editorsnote: In thisexample,the originalarticleincorrectlystated


that the revenues wouldbe distributedat the end of November.


For cities that have a qualifyinglocaltax in place,you willreceive the fullcreditof 0.0146% as soon as you adopt the


enacting ordinance.Forallother cities and towns that have adopted the enacting ordinance, you willcollecta tax


creditof 0.0073% untilyour ballotmeasure for a qualifyinglocaltax has passed.


Thispiece of legislationis complexand a bit confusing.We have workedcloselywith the DOR and the AWCto bring


you as much informationas possibleto assist with yourdecisionsto take the first step in the process — whichis to


pass a resolutionof intent. MRSCis readyto answer any furtherquestions that you may have. Pleasedo not hesitate


to send me an email or give me call.


AWC and WSAC Resources


For cities, the Associationof WashingtonCities (AWC)has preparedan m g to help


in your decision-makingprocess.


For counties, the Washington State Associationof Counties (WSAC)has preparedan i_m_plementationgt_Ji_d_eand


flowchart,


Sample Resolutions


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 28 of 118







in addition to the Pacifica LawGroup sample resolutionof intent providedby AWC.below are a few examplesof


SHB 1406 resolutionswe have come across. This is not a comprehensivelistof all the cities and counties that are


adopting resolutions. Many of the resolutions that have been adopted use very similar language based on the Pacifica


Law Group example,but we willcontinue to monitor this topic and periodicallyadd distinct or noteworthy examples


to this list.


Counties


- Pierce County Resolution No. R2019—103(2019) — Resolutionof intent for county over 400,000 population


- Thurston County ResolutionNo. 15801 (2019) — Resolutionof intent for county under 400,000 population.with


intent to enter into interlocalagreement with cities to pool revenue.


Cities


- Port AngelesResolution No. 14-19 (2019) — Submitting 0.1% affordable housing sales tax (RCW 82.14.530) to


voters as a qualifyinglocaltax under SHB 1406. Includesanalysisof election timing and costs, concludingit is


much less expensive to submit a measure at the November2019 general election (filingdeadline:August 6) than


at the Februaryor Aprilspecialelection.


- Tumwater Resolution No. R2019—006 (2019) — Resolution of intent for city under 100,000 population.


- Vancouver Resolution No. M—4026(2019) — Resolution of intent for city over 100,000 population.Includes staff


report; note that Vancouver qualifiesfor the maximum 0.0146% because it already has a qualifyinglocal tax.


Sample Adopting Ordinances


We willpost selected examplesof enacting ordinances that we receive below.


- Pacific County Ordinance No. 188 (2019) — Adoptingmaximum sales tax credit for county under 400,000


population.Ordinanceclearlyindicates which cities plan to participate; note that "qualifyinglocal taxes" apply only


to cities and are not requiredfor counties to receive maximum distribution.


- Pierce County Ordinance No. 2019-575 (2019) — Adoptingmaximum sales tax credit for county over 400,000


population.


MR5C is a private nonpro?t organization serving localgovernmen ts in WashingtonState. Elig/blegovernment


agencies in Washington State may use our free, one~on—one AskMRSC service to get answers to legal,policy, or


financialquestions.


About Toni Nelson


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 29 of 118







Toni has over 24 years of experience with LocalGovernment finance and budgeting.Toni‘s area of expertise


include "CashBasis"accounting and reporting. budgeting,audit prep and the financialissues impacting small


localgovernment.


VIEWALLPOSTS BYTONI NELSON P


e 2019 MRSCof Washington. Allrights reserved. Privacy &Term 5.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


House Bill 1406 (Tom Rogers, Planning Manager) Page 30 of 118







Ell
L I TY or


Agenda Item #L
w A s H 1 N G T 0 N Meeting Date: September 10,2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City ol‘Mill Creek.Washington


AGENDA ITEM: INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH EVERETT
PUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE PURPOSE OF SHARING COSTS
ASSOCIATED WITH THE MCPD SCHOOL RESOURCE
OFFICER PROGRAM


PROPOSED MOTION:


Motion to authorize the City Manager to execute the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between
the City of Mill Creek and Everett Public Schools Concerning the School Resource Officer
Program.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City of Mill Creek and the Everett Public Schools (District) have partnered in cost-sharing


for a School Resource Officer (SRO) program since 1996. During that time, there have been
several Interlocal Agreements between the two entities, the most recent expiring on August 31,


2019. RCW 39.34, the Inter/ocal Cooperation Act. permits local governmentalunits to make the
most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis
of mutual advantage. The agreement commences September 1, 2019 and runs through August


31, 2022.


Dating back to 1996, the City and the District have participated in a SRO program that placed an


MCPD police officer at Henry M. Jackson High School with additional duties at Heatherwood
Middle School to help promote student, staff, and public safety in the schools. Moving forward.
the District wishes to continue to provide funding for the City to support the SRO program at


Jackson High School and also desires to provide funding for a second SRO to serve


HeatherwoodMiddle School.


The cost of both SROs will be shared by the City and the District. The formula for determining


the District’s contribution is based on an assessment of the amount of time and the required
workload for the SRO’s. For the 2019-20 school year, the District shall pay the City a total of


two hundred eighteen thousand, seven hundred sixty-four dollars ($218,764) for the SRO


program at Jackson High School and I-IeatherwoodMiddle School. The SRO support will be for


182 days; all days school is in session and the day before and the day after the 180-day school


year. Additionally, the SROs will be available for special events during the school year based on


mutual agreement and will also participate in summer and other vacation events and activities as


necessary and/or appropriate. Equal payments shall be made monthly from September through


June based on 1/10 of the total contract amount, billed to Everett Public Schools.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Everett Public Schools for the Pur... Page 31 of 118







In recognitionof costs increases year-to-year, there will be a 3% increase in subsequentyears of
this agreement.


0 For the 2020-2021 schoolyear, the Districtshall pay the City two-hundredtwenty-?ve
thousand, three hundredtwenty-seven dollars ($225,327) for the same level of service.


0 For the 2021-2022 school year, the District shall pay the City two hundred thirty two


thousand, eighty-seven dollars ($232,087) for the same level of service.


Both SROs will also assist, as necessary and available, staff and students at Mill Creek
Elementary. The selection of the secondSRO will be madeby the City in consultationwith the


District and it is intendedthat the SRO be at the designatedschools on the days that school is in
session. The InterlocalAgreement providesadditionalspeci?c details regarding staf?ng and
attendance and this information is also includedin the SRO handbook.


The ILA also includes a regular reporting system that will includereports two (2) times per year


detailing activitiesperformedby the SRO at each school. These reports willbe preparedby the


Mill Creek PoliceDepartment and submittedto the Districtby January 31, and June 30. The


District Superintendent,Chief of Police, SRO Police Supervisor,and other appropriatestaff will


meet to confer on the health and effectivenessof the program and to review the draft reports in
January and June. Such reporting system may be modi?ed by the mutual written agreement of


the parties. Additionally, the City and the Districtagree to meet twice a year, at the end of each


school semester, to discuss the program and its bene?ts and weaknessesin an effort to modify


the program to providethe best possibleserviceto the City and the District.These meetings will


includethe City Manager and the DistrictSuperintendent.


The City Administrationwill performits diligence,and present same to council in a future study


session, regardingthe following: 1) the ?nancial impactthe new SRO positionmay have on


staf?ng; 2) the ?nancial impact the new SRO position may have on overtime expenses; 3) the


impact the new SRO position may have from a “human resources perspective;”3) the impact the


new SRO position may have on the Collective Bargaining Agreement; and 3) and identify all


assumptionsrelating to the analysis regardingthe impactsherein.


In addition, we invite council to guide the administrationregardingany other analysis it directs


to be performedin advanceof the study sessionregarding the impact and opportunitypresented
by the provisionof a second SRO position.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorizethe City Manager to execute the proposedAgreement with Everett Public School


District.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment 1: Interlocal cooperativeagreement between the City and the District (will be


availableon September 10, 2019)


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Everett Public Schools for the Pur... Page 32 of 118







RespectfullySubmitted:


L
Michael G. Ciaravino
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Everett Public Schools for the Pur... Page 33 of 118







. )
CITY or


Agenda Item 11%
WA 5 H 1 N G T O N Meeting Date: September 10, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek.Washington


AGENDA ITEM: ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT FUNDING FOR THE 2019 HISTORIC
PRESERVATION PROGRAM EXPENDITURES


PROPOSED MOTION:


Motion to approve Resolution 2019- authorizing the City Manager to accept Snohomish
County’s Historic Preservation Grant funding in the amount of $7.806.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City applied for and received an initial $12,500 grant from the Snohomish County Historic
Preservation Commission Community Heritage Program. Phase one of this project designated all
2018 funds towards research and design of five historical panels.


The City applied for the 2019 Historic Preservation Grant in the amount of $7.806. On July 25"‘.
the Communications and Marketing Department received con?rmation that the City had been
awarded this full dollar amount. The awarded funding will be allocated towards productionand
installationofthe historical panels.


As an Art & Beauti?cation Board project. these aesthetically pleasing panels will help preserve


Mill Creek’s history and serve as both an artistic and historical display. Upon completion. the
panels will be added to the list of art and history sites featured in the Snohomish County Tourism
Bureau’s semi-annual visitor‘s guide.


In accordancewith the newly utilized grant application process, the Communicationsand
Marketing team is seeking approval from City Council to accept the Historic Presewation Grant


award in the amount of $7.806.


Scope of Work:


Estimated Reimbursable
Expenses for this Project:


Column A Column B Column C


Description of the project List of estimated Estimate of in Total Column A


expense reimbursable kind labor, cash + Column B


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 34 of 118







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


project expenses Eor contribution


:
Custom high pressure laminate $6,368 i


A


$6,368‘
sign panels (5 panels in total)


A E T


— Installation at project site $438
A


M


$438
A A


Projectadministration
3


$2,000 $2,000


1 installationof infrastructure to I 0


.$QPP.9Fl..Fh§.P%¥}§l.S.
, , - .


.11
ll


., 0
n


.
1 04 ,0 .0


1Designer support for production $1,000 § $1,000


A ciiininoiiaisnwaraea
A i“$7,80l6"


A A


Please note:


0 The City of Mill Creek will need to complete its obligations under the scope of work by
no later than December 31, 2019.


0 The grant agreement preparedby SnohomishCounty will be effective upon mutual
execution (the “Effective Date”) and will terminate on December 31, 2019.


No matching of any kind is required.
0 Funds are allocated by reimbursementafterwork is completed.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the City Manager to accept the Historic Preservation Grant award in the amount of
$7,806.


ATTACHMENTS:


Attachment 1: Resolution 2019-
Attachment 2: Draft agreement between SnohomishCounty and the City of Mill Creek


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 35 of 118







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 3


Respectfully Submitted:


J;
Michael G. Ciaravino
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 36 of 118







RESOLUTION NO. 2019-


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK
WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE HISTORIC
PRESERVATION GRANT FUNDING IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,806.


WHEREAS, the City of Mill Creek believes itself to be quali?ed, and is willing
and able to carry out all activities describedin the grant application; and


WHEREAS, in this action the City of Mill Creek has declared its intent to
conduct the historical preservation project described in the application; and


WHEREAS, in this action the City of Mill Creek will, upon acceptance of the
grant, agree to the terms of the grant; and


WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mill Creek authorizes Michael
Ciaravino to act on behalf of the City to accept the allotted funds from the Snohomish
County HistoricPreservation Commission Community Heritage Program and sign related
documents.


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF MILL CREEK WASHINGTON THAT:


The City of Mill Creek requests the funds and assistance available from the Snohomish
County Historic Preservation Commission Community Heritage Program and will
comply with agency rules for the program.


Adopted this 10th day of September,2019, by a vote of for, against
abstaining and absent.


APPROVED:


PAM PRUITT, MAYOR


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATBD:


GINA PFISTER, CITY CLERK


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 37 of 118







APPROVED AS TO FORM:


SCOTT MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:
RESOLUTION NO.: 2019~


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 38 of 118







DRAFT


HERITAGE GROUP: City of Mill Creek


CONTACT PERSON: Gordon Brink


ADDRESS: 15728 Main Street Mill Creek, WA 98012
FEDERAL TAX ID NUMBER/U.B.l. NUMBER: 91-1225895


TELEPHONE/FAX NUMBER: 425-921-5735 Fax: 425-745-9650


COUNTY DEPT: Snohomish Parks, Recreation & Tourism


DEPT. CONTACT PERSON: Jana Notoa


TELEPHONE/FAX NUMBER: (360) 805-6710


PROJECT: Historic Timeline Mill Creek


AMOUNT: $7,806


FUND SOURCE: 100-511009445204


CONTRACT DURATION: Contract execution through December 31, 2019


HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT


THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made by and between SNOI-IOMISH COUNTY,
a political subdivision of the State of Washington (the “County’”), and City of Mill Creek, a local
government within Washington State.


Recitals:


WHEREAS, by Motion No. 19-117, passed April 24, 2019, the County Council approved the
2019 Historic Preservation Program expenditures recommended to it by the Snohomish County
Historic Preservation Commission at the levels set forth in that recommendation (or as subsequently
amended by the County Council) and authorized the County Executive to execute the necessary
contracts; and


WHEREAS, City of Mill Creek’s project was one of twelve (12) projects recommended by
the Commission and authorized by Motion No. 19-1 I7 for funding in 2019;


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual benefits and covenants contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:


1. Purpose ofA0reement: Scope of Services. The purpose ofthis Agreement is to provide
funding for the City ofMill Creek’s historical preservation Project as described in City ofMill Creek
2019 application for historical preservation funds. The Scope of Services and compensation is
described in the “Schedule A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference.


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 1 of9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 39 of 118







City of Mill Creek will prepare and present status reports and other information regarding
performance of the Agreement as the County may request.


2. Term of Agreement; Time of Performance. This Agreement shall be effective upon
mutual execution (the “Effective Date”) and shall terminate on December 31, 2019. City of Mill
Creek shall complete its obligations under the Scope of Services by no later than December 31, 2019.
The County’s obligations after December 31, 2019, are contingent upon local legislative
appropriationof necessary funds for this specificpurpose in accordance with the County Charter and
applicable law.


3. Compensation.


a. Reimbursement. The County will reimburse City of Mill Creek as set forth in
Schedule A.


b. Overhead and Expenses. No claims for reimbursement of overhead or expenses
will be allowed under this Agreement.


c. Invoices. Upon completion of City of Mill Creek’s eligible expenses for the
Project, City of Mill Creek shall submit a properly executed invoice to the County indicating the
amount of eligible expenses for reimbursement. The invoice shall include an itemization of all
reimbursable expenses incurred by City of Mill Creek, together with reasonable documentation
substantiating such expenses, all in accordance with this Section 3.


d. Contract Maximum. Total reimbursable expenses under this Agreement, all fees
and expenses included, shall not exceed $7,806.


4. IndependentContractor. City of Mill Creek agrees that it is not an agent, employee, or
servant of the County. This Agreement neither constitutes nor creates an employer-employee
relationship. The partiesagree that City of Mill Creek is not entitled to any benefits or rights enjoyed
by employees of the County. City of Mill Creek speci?cally has the right to direct and control City
of Mill Creek’s own activities in accordance with the specifications set out in this Agreement. The
County shall only have the right to ensure performance.Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to render the parties partners orjoint ventures.


City of Mill Creek shall furnish, employ and have exclusive control of all persons to be
engaged in performing City of Mill Creek’s obligations under this Agreement (the “City of Mill Creek
personnel”), and shall prescribe and control the means and methods of performing such obligations
by providing adequate and proper supervision. Such City of Mill Creek personnel shall for all
purposes be solely the employees or agents of City of Mill Creek and shall not be deemed to be
employees or agents of the County for any purposes whatsoever. With respect to City of Mill Creek
personnel, City of Mill Creek shall be solely responsible for compliance with all rules, laws and
regulations relating to employment of labor, hours of labor, working conditions, payment of wages
and payment of taxes, including applicable contributions from City of Mill Creek personnel when


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 2 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 40 of 118







required by law.


Because it is an independent contractor, City of Mill Creek shall be responsible for all
obligations relating to federal income tax, self—emp|oymentor FICA taxes and contributions, and all
other so-called employer taxes and contributions including, but not limited to, industrial insurance
(workers’ compensation). City of Mill Creek agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the County
harmless from any and all claims, valid or otherwise, made to the County because ofthese obligations.


City of Mill Creek assumes full responsibility for the payment ofall payroll taxes, use, sales,
income, or other form of taxes, fees, licenses, excises or payments required by any city, county,
federal or state legislation which are now or may during the term ofthe Agreement be enacted as to


all persons employed by City of Mill Creek and as to all duties, activities and requirements by City
ol‘Mill Creek in completion of the Project under this Agreement. City of Mill Creek shall assume
exclusive liability therefor, and shall meet all requirements thereunder, pursuant to any rules or


regulations that are now or may be promulgated in connection therewith.


5. Changes. No changes or additions shall be made in this Agreement except as agreed to


by both parties, reduced to writing and executed with the same formalities as are required for the
execution of this Agreement.


6. Countv Contact Person. The assigned contact person (or project manager) for the
County for this Agreement shall be:


Name: Jana Notoa
Title: Administration Analyst
Department: Snohomish County Parks, Recreation & Tourism
Telephone: (360) 805-6710
Email: ‘ana.notoa@snoco.org


7. Records and Access‘ Audit‘ Ine?ible Expenditures. City of Mill Creek shall maintain
adequate records to support its invoices of reimbursable expenses. Said records shall be maintained
for a period of seven (7) years after completion ofthis Agreement by City ofMiIl Creek. The County
or any of its duly authorized representatives shall have access at reasonable times to any books,
documents, papers and records of City of Mill Creek that are directly related to this Agreement for
the purposes of making audit examinations, obtaining excerpts, transcripts or copies, and ensuring
compliance by the County with applicable laws. Expenditures under this Agreement, which are
determined by audit to be ineligible for reimbursement and for which payment has been made to City
oTMill Creek, shall be refunded to the County by City of Mill Creek.


8. Insurance: _Duringthe term of this Agreement City ofMill Creek shall maintain
insurance as described below.


a. General. Each insurance policy shall be written on an "occurrence“ form.


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 3 of9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 41 of 118







By requiring the minimum insurance coverage set forth in this Section 8, the County
shall not be deemed or construed to have assessed the risks that may be applicable to City of Mill
Creek under this Agreement. City of Mill Creek shall assess its own risks and, if it deems
appropriateand/or prudent, maintain greater limits and/or broader coverage.


b. No Limitationon Liability. City of Mill Creek’s maintenanceof insuranceas
requiredby this Agreement shall not be construedto limit the liability of City of Mill Creek to the
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwiselimit the County’s recourse to any remedy
available at law or in equity.


c. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. City of Mill Creek shall maintain
coverage at least as broad as, and with limitsno less than:


(i) General Liability: $1 ,000.000.00combinedsingle limit per occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage, and for those policieswith aggregate limits, a
$l,OO0.000.00 aggregate limit. CG 00 01 current edition.


d. Other Insurance Provisionsand Requirements. The insurance coverage required in
this Agreement must contain, or must be endorsedto contain, the following provisions:


(i) The County, its of?cers, of?cials, employees and agents are to be covered as
additionalinsuredas respects liability arising out of activities performedby or on
behalf of City of Mill Creek in connection with this Agreement. Such coverage shall
be primary and non-contributory insuranceas respects the County, its of?cers,
of?cials, employees and agents. Additional Insured Endorsement shall be included
with the certi?cate of insurance, “CG 2026 07/04" or its equivalent is required.


(ii) City of Mill Creek’s insurance coverage shall apply separately to each insured
against whom a claim is made and/or lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the
insurer's liability.


9. Indemni?cation and Hold Harmless. Except for the sole negligenceof the County, City
of Mill Creek agrees to protect, defend and indemnifythe County from any and all costs, claims,
judgments and/or awards of damages, arising out of or in any way resulting from City of Mill Creek’s
activities and/or services associatedwith this Agreement.


The indemni?cation, protection, defense and save harmless obligations contained herein shall
survive the expiration, abandonment or terminationof this Agreement.


Nothing contained within this provision shall affect or alter the application of any other
provision contained within this Agreement.


10. Federal Non—discrimination.Snohomish County assures that no persons shall on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 4 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 42 of 118







(Pub. L. No. 88-352), as amended, and the Civil Rights RestorationAct of 1987 (Pub. L. No. 100-
259) be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discriminationunder any County sponsoredprogram or activity. Snohomish County further assures
that every effort will be made to ensure nondiscriminationin all of its programs and activities,whether
those programs and activitiesare federally funded or not.


11. County Non-discrimination. It is the policy of the County to reject discriminationwhich
denies equal treatment to any individual because of his or her race, creed, color, national origin,
families with children, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or
military status, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability as provided in Washington’s Law against
Discrimination,Chapter 49.60 RCW, and the Snohomish County Human Rights Ordinance, Chapter
2.460 SCC. These laws protect against speci?c forms of discrimination in employment, credit
transactions, public accommodation,housing, county facilities and services, and county contracts.


City of Mill Creek shall comply with the substantive requirements of Chapter 2.460 SCC,
which are incorporated herein by this reference. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a
certification by City of Mill Creek of City of Mill Creek 's compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 2.460 SCC. If City of Mill Creek is found to have violated this provision,or to have furnished
false or misleading information in an investigation or proceeding conducted pursuant to this
Agreement or Chapter 2.460 SCC, this Agreement may be subject to a declaration of default and
termination at the County's discretion. This provision shall not affect City of Mill Creek ‘sobligations
under other federal, state, or local laws against discrimination.


12. Employment of Coung; Employees. SCC 2.50.075, “Restrictions on future
employment of County employees,”imposescertain restrictionson the subsequentemployment and
compensationof County employees. City of MillCreek represents and warrants to the County that it
does not at the time of execution of this Agreement, and that it shall not during the term of this
Agreement, employ a former or current County employee in violation of SCC 2.50.075. For breach
or violation of these representationsand warranties, the County shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement without liability.


13. Compliance with Other Laws. City of Mill Creek shall comply with all other applicable
federal, state and local laws, rules, and regulations in performingthis Agreement.


14. Compliance with Grant Terms and Conditions. City of Mill Creek shall comply with
any and all conditions, terms and requirements of any federal, state or other grant, if any, that wholly
or partially funds City of Mill Creek’s work hereunder.


15. Prohibition of Contingency Fee Arrangements. City of Mill Creek warrants that it has
not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona ?de employee working solely for
City of Mill Creek, to solicit or secure this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any
company or person, other than a bona ?de employee working solely for City of Mill Creek, any fee,
commission,percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration,contingent upon or resulting


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 5 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 43 of 118







from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violationof this warranty, the County
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from
the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee.


16. Force Majeure. If either party is unable to perform any of its obligations under this
Agreement as a direct result of an unforeseeable event beyond that party’s reasonable control,
including but not limited to an act of war, act of nature (including but not limited to earthquake and
?ood), embargo, riot, sabotage, labor shortage or dispute (despite due diligence in obtaining the
same), or governmental restriction imposedsubsequent to execution of the Agreement (collectively,
a “force majeure event”), the time for performance shall be extended by the number of days directly
attributable to the force majeure event. Both parties agree to use their best efforts to minimize the
effects of such failures or delays.


17. Non-Waiver of Breach° Termination.


a. The failure of the County to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants
or agreements contained in this Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred by this Agreement,
in one or more instancesshall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishmentof those covenants,
agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.


b. If City of Mill Creek breachesany of its obligations hereunder, and fails to cure the
same within ?ve (5) business days of written notice to do so by the County, the County may terminate
this Agreement, in which case the County shall reimburse City of Mill Creek only for the eligible
expenses, if any, accepted by the County in accordancewith Section 3.


c. The County may terminate this Agreement upon five (5) business days’ written
notice to City of Mill Creek for any reason other than stated in subparagraph b above, in which case
reimbursement shall be made in accordance with Section 3 hereof for the eligible expenses, if any,
reasonably and directly incurred by City of Mill Creek prior to receipt of the termination notice.


d. Termination by the County hereunder shall not affect the rights of the County as
against City of Mill Creek provided under any other section or paragraph herein. The County does
not, by exercising its rights under this Section 17, waive, release or forego any legal remedy for any
violation, breach or non-performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement. At its sole option,
the County may deduct from the final payment due City of Mill Creek (i) any damages, expenses or
costs arising out of any such violations, breaches or non-performance and (ii) any other set-offs or
credits including, but not limited to, the costs to the County of selecting and compensating another
contactor to complete the work of the Agreement.


18. Notices. All notices and other communications shall be in writing and shall be
sufficient if given, and shall be deemed given, on the date on which the same has been mailed by
certified mail, return receipt requested,postage prepaid, addressed as follows:


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 6 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 44 of 118







If to the County: Snohomish County Of?ce Parks, Recreation& Tourism
14405 179'“Ave SE
Monroe, Washington 98272
Attention: Jana Notoa


Historic PreservationGrant Manager


If to City of Mill Creek: Address: 15728 Main Street Mill Creek, WA 98012
Attention: Gordon Brink


The County or City of Mill Creek may, by notice to the other given hereunder, designate any
further or different addresses to which subsequentnotices or other communicationsshall be sent.


19. Con?dentiality. Except as authorized or required by any law the City of Mill Creek
shall not disclose, transfer, sell or otherwise release to any third party any con?dential information
gained by reason of or otherwise in connectionwith the City of Mill Creek’s performance under this
Agreement. The City of Mill Creek may use such informationsolely for the purposes necessary to


perform its obligations under this Agreement. The City of Mill Creek shall promptly give written
notice to the County of anyjudicial proceeding seeking disclosureof such information.


20. Public Records Act. This Agreement and all public records associated with this
Agreement shall be available from the County for inspection and copying by the public where
requiredby the Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW (the “Act”). To the extent that public records
then in the custody of City of Mill Creek are needed for the County to respond to a request under the
Act, as determined by the County, the City of Mill Creek agrees to make them promptly available to


the County. If the City of Mill Creek considers any portion of any record provided to the County
under this Agreement, whether in electronicor hard copy form, to be protected from disclosureunder
law, the City of Mill Creek shall clearly identify any speci?c infonnation that it claims to be
con?dential or proprietary. If the County receives a request under the Act to inspect or copy the
information so identi?ed by the City of Mill Creek and the County determines that release of the
information is requiredby the Act or otherwise appropriate, the County’s sole obligations shall be to
notify the City of Mill Creek (a) of the request and (b) of the date that such information will be
released to the requester unless the City of Mill Creek obtains a court order to enjoin that disclosure
pursuant to RCW 42.56.540. If the City of Mill Creek fails to timely obtain a court order enjoining
disclosure, the County will release the requested information on the date speci?ed.


The County has, and by this section assumes, no obligation on behalf of the City of Mill Creek
to claim any exemption from disclosureunder the Act. The County shall not be liable to the City of
Mill Creek for releasing records not clearly identi?ed by the City of Mill Creek as con?dential or
proprietary. The County shall not be liable to the City of Mill Creek for any records that the County
releases in compliance with this section or in compliance with an order of a court of competent
jurisdiction.


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 7 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 45 of 118







21. Prevailing Wage. In completing the Project, City of Mill Creek shall comply with
Washington State Prevailing Wage laws. The City of Mill Creek shall pay any laborers and mechanics
performing work for the Project at wage rates not less than those prevailing on similar construction
in the locality in accordance with 39.12 RCW pertaining to payment of state prevailing wages on
public works projects. The City of Mill Creek shall require all contractors and subcontractors to
comply with RCW 49.28.06O and 49.28.065. City of Mill Creek shall ?le and ensure that any
subcontractor ?le with Department of Labor and Industries a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing
Wages and Af?davit of Wages Paid. Compliance with this section is material to this Agreement, any
breach of this Section 21 is cause for County terminationunder Section 17.


22. Interpretation. This Agreement and each of the terms and provisions of it are deemed
to have been explicitly negotiated by the parties. The language in all parts of this Agreement shall,
in all cases, be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either of the
parties hereto. The captions and headings of this Agreement are used only for convenience and are
not intended to affect the interpretationof the provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement shall
be construed so that wherever applicable the use of the singular number shall include the plural
number, and vice versa, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders.


23. Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the
parties. Any written or verbal agreements that are not set forth herein or incorporated herein by
reference are expressly excluded.


24. Con?icts between Attachments and Text. Should any con?icts exist between any
attached application and the text or main body of this Agreement, the text or main body of this
Agreement shall prevail.


25. No Third Pam Bene?ciaries. The provisions of this Agreement are for the exclusive
bene?t of the County and City of Mill Creek. This Agreement shall not be deemed to have conferred
any rights, express or implied, upon any third parties.


26. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Washington. The venue of any action arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of
the State of Washington, in and for Snohomish County.


27. Severability. Should any clause, phrase, sentence or paragraph of this agreement be
declared invalid or void, the remaining provisionsof this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.


28. Authority. Each signatory to this Agreement represents that he or she has full and
sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the County or the City of Mill Creek, as
the case may be, and that upon execution of this Agreement it shall constitute a binding obligation of
the County or the City of Mill Creek, as the case may be.


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 8 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 46 of 118







29. Survival. Those provisions of this Agreement that by their sense and purpose should
survive expirationor termination of the Agreement shall so survive.


30. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement.


“County”
SNOHOMISH COUNTY: City of Mill Creek:


County Executive or Delegate Date Michael Ciaravino Date
City Manager


(2019 ed.)
HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT


Page 9 of 9


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 47 of 118







Schedule A
Scope of Work


Scope ofwork taken from application


1.
Project Budget Compensation


City of Mill Creek will be reimbursed by the County for eligible expenses incurred in
completing the Project pursuant to the Agreement in an amount not to exceed $7,806.


Expenses eligible for reimbursement under the Agreement are de?ned as those listed in the
Budget Quoteincluded in Schedule A for five (5) historical timeline panels to hang in Mill
Creek Town Center, highlighting the history of Mill Creek. The City of Mill Creek will
not be reimbursed for any expenses incurred by it that provide direct promotional benefit
to a speci?c private business entity. ln order to ensure timely closeout ofthe Project, the
City of Mill Creek shall submit its invoice to the County no later than thirty (30) calendar
days after completion of the services authorized by this Agreement and, in any event. no
later than December 31, 2019. The City of Mill Creek’s invoice shall be accompanied by
a report summarizing the Project and how funds provided for the Project under this
Agreement have promoted historical preservation or historical programs in Snohomish
County. ln no event shall the City of Mill Creek’s invoice be paid by the County if it is
submittedafter December 31. 2019, or ifit is not accompanied by the required report.


Include table of expenses with match and reimbursable expense detailed


List of Estimated Reimbursable
Expenses Grant Request


In-Kindlabor
Description or cash Cash


Custom High Pressure Laminate Sign Panels ‘/4" thick
(5 panels) $6,368 $6,368


Installation at project site $438 $438


Staff time/project administration $2,000 $2,000


Staff time and materials/installationof infrastructure
to support the panels $15,000 $15,000


Designer support for production $1,000 $1,000


Total Project Budget $ 24,806.00


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program E... Page 48 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 49 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 50 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 51 of 118







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #F.


Approval of C
hecks #60648 through #60880 and AC


H
 W


ire Transfers in the A...
Page 52 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 53 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 54 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 55 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 56 of 118







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #F.


Approval of C
hecks #60648 through #60880 and AC


H
 W


ire Transfers in the A...
Page 57 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 58 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 59 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 60 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 61 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 62 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 63 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 64 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 65 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 66 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 67 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 68 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 69 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 70 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 71 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 72 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 73 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 74 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 75 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 76 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 77 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 78 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 79 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 80 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 81 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 82 of 118







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Approval of Checks #60648 through #60880 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 83 of 118







Date: September 10 2019


£;
/-1-==~&__,Mi11C7r:e2/


ea/k
WASHINGTON


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount


07/25/2019 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $160,786.94
07/25/2019 ACH Wire- FWT & Medicare Taxes $28,633.45
07/25/2019 ACH Wire MEBT — Wilmington Trust $29,711.82
07/25/2019 ACH Wire ~ BAC — Flex Savings Acct $1,422.40
07/25/2019 ACH Wire — BAC — Health Savings Acct $162.49
07/25/2019 ACH Wire 4 ICMA RC 4 Def. Comp $1,694.19


Total $222,411.29


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $222,411.29.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember
WMW. ' .


Finance Director


Councilmember City Manager


G:\F|NANCE\Restri<:ted (old I drive)\Payro||\Voucher Coversheets\2019\Payro|| VoucherApprova| 07.25.19.docx
9/4/2019


AGENDA ITEM #G.


July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $222,411... Page 84 of 118







C
o


F m
oan.


8.818
_.


m
....o§..8


_.
m


n.8...9=
___..a_._:30...


E
m


E
E


:w
_m


o:m
_§m


m
n.o~e.2:


2.8
73-8


am
e_§w


_8_§E
m


:9.
m .


$5
982


___n_m
:o .m


om..:o>
-m


oxm
._.


cod
m


u_o>
\>


m
ao.n=


m
E


oE
.m


=
_u<


oo.o
m


xom
zo


b___%
_._.550


a
858


...am
u::.W


o< ..30>
E


O
._u__uoanoo u..=


.—
O


:._<.83
3.832


8o<
gm


o
on


.8._o
8_zom


=
3".


w
.8m


.._a._._..550
m


vdnodu
uo?oo


no.8...
.52.


8...
xm


._..o_..m
_o_8?m


oo.o
T


.8...
9:82.


.83
cod


m
m


-
E


oE
m


m
.....w


m
<


25".
E


m
com


.m
§_..o>


>


oo.o
m


m
-


E
m


E
m


m
om


m
< ucau


E
m


cm
m


.m
.9_._o>


>


8...
T


_


m
m


-
xm


h ?e“:
.\.n.m


—
w


T
"


T.
.m


m
-


m
o:aS


m
:_


m
>


am
._ _w


o_um
s_23m


m
tm


t
m


m
-


m
ucus»...


93..
.3505.


22m
86


«


T
m


m
-


m
o:m


._=
m


:_m>
m


o._ >
__E


m
n_Saw


\ w
m


dm
.


.
m


m
-


8:m
._:m


:_
w


>
m


w
._ >


__E
nn_23w


8...
T


m
m


-m
s


a___%
m


_o=
co_§o_aem


=
:


22w
8...


I


m
m


-_c<m
o:m


._=
m


:_ a___nm
.a._o
22m


8...
m


m
-


oo:a..=
m


..__a___a$_o
sew


T
T


Tcod
.


m
m


-
_v<oo:w


._:m
c_ E


oE
>


o_aE
m


.5
23w


T


T


oo.o
m


m
. -
oo:m


._:w
c_:._0F


_>
o_Q


_.:0_._D
22m


.
cod


.8...
oE


oo:_
23w


E
ogm


m
m


coz
cod


xm
._.m


E
ooc_


89w
oo.o


xm
._.Em


E
>


o_nE
o.5


_m
.oum


n_


cod
m


E
m


E
>


an_m
ucS


m
_w


m
<


E
:_E


m
.n_


<
m


m
O


o
oo.o


m
m


-
_u<xm


tsw
e8_8s_


8...
m


m
-xssm


28_B
s_


8...
m


m
-


._u<2832
m


adam
.»


m
m


-
o_8_8s_


8.~m
~.n


m
m .


28_B
s_


8...
m


m
-._u<a_58m


_a_8w


8...
m


m
-


£58m
_m


_8w


oo.o
m


m
-


a_s8w
_m


_oow


oo.o
m


m
o:m


>
u< ._um


._om
E


ooc_
uosm


m
.


.
xm


m
E


oo:
S


o
o


u£_._8
m


oxm
._.


Q
ouam


ko
E


m
_>


_n_§ooH
...:oao\oe_.r


E
m


E
ow


aw
koaao


>
9".


.3;
582


0508
osoum


zm
o 8_zom


._$.o
___s_6


36
-


>
>


o<
s=


_3soo


>
._aE


E
:m


_m
o_um


=
3m


m
P


om
aum


m
tzo


m
5%


E
onem


o
m


i
8%


_$>
>


m
.w


_aE
oom


_o>
0nw


3E
m


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #G


.


July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $222,411...
Page 85 of 118







Payment Details Report


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Leo, Lota
Run Date: 08/08/2019 4:52:50 PM CDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status:
Transaction Number:


Debit Account Information


Debit Bank:
Debit Account:


Debit Account Name:
Debit Currency:


Bene?ciary Details


Bene?ciary Name:
Beneficiary Address:


Beneficiary City:
Bene?clary Postal Code:


Beneficiary Country:


Payment Details


Credit Currency:
Credit Amount:


Optional Information


Sender's Reference Number:


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control Information


input:
Approved:


Initial Confirmatlo.
Confirmation ff


Con?rmed By Bank
197UJ24293E10L3O


L
Treas Checking
USD


MATRIXTRUST COMPANY
NA
NA
NA
US - UnitedStates ofAmerica


USD
29,711.82


CITYMILLCREEK


Iotleo
- -..i......;°|


BankofAmerica
MerrillLynch


Template Name: MATRIX/MEBT
Template Code: WILTRUST


Bene?ciary Account:
Beneficiary Bank ID:


JPMORGANCHASEBANK, NA
1111 POLARIS PKVW
COLUMBUS
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date:


Beneficiary lnfonnation:


07/31/2019


City of MillCreek n3177e


Receiver lnfonnation:


Input Time:
Time:


07/30/2019 7:24:37 PM CDT
07/31/2019 4:06:37 PM CDT


vs),


AGENDA ITEM #G.


July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $222,411... Page 86 of 118







RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 0810812019


City of MillCreek Report Time: 04:51 :07 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 07/31/2019


ACH ID: , Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Submitted Created By: LOTLEO


Released By: SGOBRAIEL


Name ID Amount D/C Bank ID Account # '-°Lt Trace #
— -j -- -—-— -—: Type j


BAC EENEF”AD"""" $1.422.4o c c


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 ,422.40 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .422.40 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-achbankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewfonn.jsp?source=BATCHSUM... 8/8/2019


AGENDA ITEM #G.


July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $222,411... Page 87 of 118







RptBatchSumViewForm


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date:


City of MillCreek Report Time:


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date: 0713112019


ACH ID: Batch Sequence: 2


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Submitted Created By: LOTLEO


Released By: SGOBRAIEL


Name D Amount _D_/Q Bank ID Account #


BAG (BZENEFITADMIN $16249 C
V


‘


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $162.49 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $162.49 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


o Ellz
o


“,9.


Page 1 of 1


08/08/2019


04:50:37 PM


Trace #


httnsz//cno-ach.bankofamerica.c0m/wcmnr/mtbatchsumviewfnrm.isn?source=R ATCHSI IM. .. 8/8/71110


AGENDA ITEM #G.


July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $222,411... Page 88 of 118







Payment Details Report .7BankofAmerica’.
Company: Cityof MillCreek -


Requester: Leo, Lota -Me"-I"Lynch
Run Date: 08/08/2019 4:55:03 PM CDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:Urgent/Wire


Status: Confirmed Rv Rank Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Transaction Numbei Template code: ICMA


Debit Account Information


Debit Bani" '


Debit Account
Debit Account Name: Treas Checking


Debit Currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Bene?ciary Name: ICMARC Beneficiary Account: -


Bene?ciary Address: P.O. Box64553 Bene?ciary Bank ID:
Beneficiary City: Baltimore MANUFACTURERSANDTRADERS TR C


Beneficiary Postal Code: 21264-4553 ONE MANDT PLAZA,15TH FL
Beneficiary country: US - UnitedStates of America BUFFALO


US - UnitedStates of America
Bene?ciary Email:


Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 07/31/2019
credit Amount: 1,694.19


Optional Information


sender's Reference Number: 302029 Bene?ciary Information: City of MillCreek 302029


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver lnforrnation:


Control information


Input: lotleo Input Time: 07/30/2019 7:23:05 PM CDT
Approved: sgobraiel Time: 07/31/2019 4:06:37 PM CDT


Initial Con?rmation
Confirmation #:


AGENDA ITEM #G.


July 25, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $222,411... Page 89 of 118







Date: September 10.2019 WASHINGTON


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
08/09/2019 ACH Wire»Assoc. of WA Cities $90,037.11
08/09/2019 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $178,048.23
08/09/2019 ACH Wire—FWT & Medicare Taxes $36:444441
08/09/2019 ACH Wire MEBT — Wilmington Trust $26,527.62
08/09/2019 AC1-lWire — BAC — Flex Savings Acct $1,422.40
08/09/2019 ACH Wire — BAC — Health Savings Acct $162.49
08/09/2019 ACH Wire ~ ICMA RC — Def. Comp $1,694.19


Total $334,336.45


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $334.336.45.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


dt/1//K
Councilmember Fi ance Director


Councilmember City Manager


G:\FlNANCE\Restricted (old I drive)\Payro||\Voucher Coversheets\2019\PayrolI Voucher Approval 05.09.2019.docx
9/4/201 9


AGENDA ITEM #H.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,33... Page 90 of 118







ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES


MILL CREEK, CITY OF


ACCOUNT SUMMARY — contains all changes to this account as of 08/06/2019 02:17:55 PM


FUND: 100 ACCOUNT NUMBER: 186 L


BILL MONTH: 08/2019


COVERAGE MONTH: O8/2019


PAYMENTDUE BY: 08/10/2019


CURRENT BILLING AMOUNT: $90,037.11


PRIOR OVERAGE OR SHORTAGE: $0.00


ADJUSTMENTS: $0.00


TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: $90,037.11


100 186 L 082019 0


Fund Account Number Bill Month Amount Paid


I100 186 L O8/2019 $ CIO057.1 I
I


If you have questions concerning your billing, please contact the Association of Washington Cities Office at


(800) 562-8981 or (360) 753-4137 or Northwest Administrators, Inc. at (206) 726-3345.


MAIL PAYMENT TO: If payment is made by check, please print a copy of this page and mail it with your payment to the


following address.


ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES


PO BOX 84303


SEATTLE, WA 98124-5603


Page 1 of 3


AGENDA ITEM #H.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,33... Page 91 of 118







T
m


§_
m


m
om


_
m


c3
3m


_.
<


m
§.


m
..o


m
_


m
:3


:.m
_.


<
oo


3B
=


<
“>


o<
<-


05
.


0*
2:


:
oq


m
m


x m
m


2_
om


om
am


no
ou


m
_u


m
o5


o
22


.5
<


<
m


m
»


m
8E


m
“o


<
o_


m
oo


3u
_m


.m
<


<
$_


%
8


.u
m


<oa
m


oe
oe


no
a


E
m


U
m


$”
o.


2w
.:m


o8


oE
<


8n
e~


o$
w


as
:3


2o
m


$”
~o


um
”m


._
.u


_<
_ m


o.
.. 85


:8
8


._
.m


xm
m om


us
?


m
m


3
:o


o3
m


m
x


.
m


m
_.


:m
a _:


oo
3m


08
¢:


>
a<


m
:o


om
o.


oo
m


oa
n.m


m
o:


_.
.n


<
-
m


m
o.


oo
m


oo
_m


_ m
m


oc
zé


-
m


m
o.


oo
m


oo
.m


_ m
m


o:
_.


=
< >
2


-
m


m
o.


oo
_<


_m
&


om
_.


m-
m


m
m


_m
.B


.8
_<


_m
&


om
_.


m-
m


m
u.


m
d.


u~
zm


nm
om


a
>


&
-
m


m
o.


oo
_<


_m
n=


om
6
m


ca
m


x.. m
m


o.
oo


_<
_m


&
om


_.
m w


cz
m


x >&
-
m


m
o.


oo
oo


m
x»


.
_u


..m
3E


3
>


m
m


m
m


.m
=


8_u
m


<
3m


:.m
o.


oo
m


ag
m


a»
.


c:
o3


u_
o<


3m
:.


._
.m


x
o.


oo
w


as
_=


oo
3m


._
.m


x
o.


oo
zo


:m
aa


m
aw


as
_:


oo
3o


._
.m


x
o.


oo
..


m
aa


c:
m


3u
_o


<
3m


:»
_:


m
:_


.m
:o


m -
m


m
A


.
o.


oo
\


m
sa


c:
m


_.
:u


_o
<


3o
3


_:
m


c_
.m


:o
m >


&
-
m


m
,


o.
oo


H
.


x


93
¢


o_
$a


__
5.


_:
m


.._
_.


m
:o


m
-
m


m
.


o.
oo


»


m
aa


U
m


m
m


E
_=


<
_:


m
:_


.m
:o


m >
&


.-
m


m
.


o.
oo


m
aa


c:
m


3u
_o


<
3m


:<
U


.m
m


a=
=


<
E


m
-
m


m
.


V
o.


oo
w


as
_u


m
_.


a.
<


_.
m


m
<


m_
:m


:..
m


:o
m -


m
m


o
.


.
... S


an
a


K


w
as


_u
m


3=
<_


-o
m


<
m


_:
m


:_
.m


:o
m -


m
m


A


.‘


ow
.o.


oo
w


as
_<


_m
a.


nm
_ _.
m


m
<


m_
:m


:_
.m


:o
m -


m
m


..
.


~3
3.


m
i»


_<
_m


n=
om


_
_.


m
m


<
m_


:m
.._


_.
m


:o
m


-
m


m
.


K
A


V
8.


8
._


...
m


:m
=._


.m
x -
m


m
.


.
M


.
A


.
o.


oo
<


<
2_


.m
a.


m
m


zm
m


.
ns


a
>


m
m


m
m


m
3m


3-
m


o.
oo


<
<


o_
._


8.
m


.
w


m
am


a
23


.
>


m
m


m
m


m
3¢


3
-
m


m
o.


oo
_.


.o
om


_ _:
no


3m
._


.m
x.


.
.


o.
oo


m
o:


oo
_


U
_m


._
._


o..
_.


m
x


o.
oo


._
.o


.m
_._


.m
xm


m 03
.8


;
.


um
.e


$.
.:


O
52


.
._


._
.m


:m
3—


m
_u


=
__m


m
qs


oo
_u


=
.m


o._
um


.o
m


= >
oQ


.
7


-
1:


.
...


..
-


-
-


i.
.i-


--
-


I
.


3m
.o


..m
.B


._
.o


8_
E


m
u.


..
._


.o
.m


_ >3
05


:
am


us
e.


_.
..3


_.
:


<
2:


>
oo


o:
:n


~.
_ 93


»?
33


.8
.?


m
a.


.. o
ou


?
m


05
9.


_.
._


m
E


:n
<


o_
§_


a
o.


oo
~$


.$
~.


2
>


a_
.:m


=
:m


:.m
=


u_
.o


_u
m


<
\<


oE
m


o.
oo


~.
3.


$~
.o


.«
._


.m
xo


m
- <
05


.
w


ow
. o:m


=
u.


=
zo


sm
S


W
.m


.6
:


m
"m


._
m


=
om


_m
.c


33
m


J.
om


-o
o-


8.
x_


m
vm


omA
oT


_


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #H


.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $334,33...
Page 92 of 118







*5Outgoing Payments Report Bankof America4}
Company: Cityof MillCreek -


6


Requester: Leo, Lota
Merr'|' Lynch


Run Date: 08/13/2019 7:04:08 PM CDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status: Con?rmed Bv Flank Template Name: MATRIX/MEBT
Transaction Number: Template Code: VVILTRUST


Debit Account Information


Debit Bank: .- .
Debit Account: \


Debit Account Name: 1-eas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Bene?ciary Name: MATRIXTRUST COMPANY Beneficiary Account: .'


Beneficiary Address: NA Bene?ciary Bank ID:
Bene?ciary City: NA JPMORGAN CHASE BANK.NA


Beneficiary Postal Code: NA 1111 POLARISPKWY
Beneficiary Country: US - United States ofAmerica COLUMBUS


US - United States of America
Bene?ciary Email:


Bene?ciary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 08/13/2019
Credit Amount: 26.527.62


Optional lnfonnation


Senders Reference Number: CITYMILLCREEK Bene?ciary Information: City of MillCreek n3177e


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver Information:


Control Information


Input: lotleo input Time: 08/13/2019 2:38:06 PM CDT
Approved: """""' Time: 08/13/2019 3:14:44 PM CDT


Initial Con?rmation: . . . .. .
Con?rmation


AGENDA ITEM #H.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,33... Page 93 of 118







RptBatchSumViewForm = Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 08/16/2019


City of MillCreek Report Time: 05:45:49 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 08/14/2019


ACH ID: Batch Sequence: 2


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Submitted Created By: LOTLEO


Released By: SGOBRAIEL


Name l_D Amount ___Q Bank ID Account # $L: Trace #


BAC SENEF”ADM“ $1,422.40 c c 0130329


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 ,422.40 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 ,422.40 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.corn/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.j sp?sou.rce=BATCHSU... 8/16/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,33... Page 94 of 118







RptBatchSmnVieyvFonn Page 1otil


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 08/16/2019


City of MillCreek Report Time: 05:45:15 PM


Batch Summary Report by IDNumber


Company Name: City of Mill01
.


Effective Date: 0811412019


ACH ID: Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Submitted Created By: LOTLEO


Released By: SGOBRAIEL


Name Q Amount pig Bank ID Account # % Trace #


BAC EENEHTADM” $162.49 c
-


c 0130784


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $162.49 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits. $0.00 0


Credits $162.49 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-achbankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewfonn.jsp?source=BATCHSU... 8/16/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,33... Page 95 of 118







Outgoing Payments Report BankofAmerica
Company: City of MillCreek Merrill Lynch
Requester: Gobraiel.Silvea
Run Date: 08/15/2019 10:17:10 AMCDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgent/Wire


Status: Con?rmed Bv Bank Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Transaction Number: Template Code: ICMA


Debit Account Information


Debit Bank:
Debit Accoun


Debit Account Name: Ireas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name: ICMARC Beneficiary Account:
Beneficiary Address: P.O. Box 64553 Bene?ciary Bank ID:


Beneficiary City: Baltimore MANUFACTURERSAND TRADERS TR C
Beneficiary Postal Code: 21264-4553 ONE MANDT PLA.7J\.15TH FL


Bene?ciary country: US - UnitedStates ofAmerica BUFFALO
US - United States of America


Bene?ciary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 08/13/2019
Credit Amount: 1,694.19


Optional Information


Senders Reference Number: 302029 Beneficiary lnfonnation: City of MillCreek 302029


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver Information:


Control Information


input: Iotleo Input Time: 08/13/2019 2:38:40 PM CDT
Approved: sgobraiel Time: 08/13/2019 3:14:44 PM CDT


Initial confirmation:
Confirmation ii’


AGENDA ITEM #H.


August 9, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $334,33... Page 96 of 118







Date: September 10.2019


Millk
WASHINGTON


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
08/23/2019 AC1-IAutomatic Deposit Checks $157,692.96
08/23/2019 ACH Wire—FWT & Medicare Taxes $28,235.77
08/23/2019 ACH Wire MEBT — Wilmington Trust $28,973.56
08/23/2019 AC1-IWire — BAC — Flex Savings Acct $1,422.40
08/23/2019 AC1-1Wire ~ ICMA RC 4 Def. Comp $1,606.11


Total $217,930.80


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $217 930.80.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember
l/~/WM


Finance Director


Councilmember City Manager


G:\F|NANCE\Restricted (old I drive)\Payro1l\Voucher Coversheets\2019\Payro[l Voucher Approval O8.23.19.docx
9/4/2019


AGENDA ITEM #I.


August 23, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $217,9... Page 97 of 118







F
ho _.moan.


2..a~o.m
_=


9...w
$.$


w
2.a~o...x=


___nm
_._.59..


.cm
E


E
:.m _m


o_~w
=


E
w


2..m
3_m


a
—


.


2.8
78-8


am
E


E
:m


_8_m
_§m


__o._a.
$5


232
oo.o


m
c_o\<


>
m


am
.n=


m
.:oE


.w
=


_u<


8...
9.85


.::ooo<
._:o>


E
9“.


um
znw


a.::oE
<


.38.


8.~8<
...=


.
<


~_8.on_
.o9_o


8_zm
m


=
3".


t..m
n~.a~


.
assoc


m
oxw


._._S
o._.


oo.o
_


0...xm
._.SE


20
_o9....m


8.o
_..


.
0


.
.8...


oE
8c_


_m
uo._


oo.o
.,m


m
-


E
m


E
m


m
om


w
<95".


E
m


cm
m


..u..9_.o>
>


00.0
‘m


m
u


E
m


E
m


m
om


w
< _uc:n_E


ocom
.m


._ox..o>
>


oo.o
.


..
,.


m
w


-xm
._L


_m
:m


.._.


«m
in


\


A


M
.


_.m
m


-
oo:m


._:m
=


_o>
m


o._
_8__.o_2


22m
8&


5
xx


_


.
.,


m
m


-
w


o:m
.5m


:_
m


>
m


m
._.8522


22m
oo.o ._ _


m
. ..


m
m


-
m


o:m
.3m


:_
w


>
m


m
._ >__E


an_29m
«tum


.
.


_.


m
m


. -
w


o:m
.=


..m
c_o>


m
w


._ >
__E


m
u_99m


.8...
A


.
,


..
%


.
m


m
-


2.
a___§_%


_aea_..§_5
29m


8.9
m


m
-


__o<8§=
m


=
_


a___%
m


_n_o?w
cod


._
‘


m
m


-
oo:m


.=
..m


:_z__5$_n_
sew


.
Woo.o


0


.
m


m
-_u<ooca._:m


:_E
w


E
>


o_aE
m


::
E


m
xw


.
.


%
, .....oo.o


..
m


m
-


m
o:w


5m
:_


E
w


E
>


o_nE
m


_5
99m


.
:


oo.o
xm


._.oE
8..__


22w
E


opm
m


m
coz


cod
.8...


m
E


3c_
28m


86
.8...


E
m


E
>


o_aE
m


c:
_m


.oum
u_


oo.o
m


E
m


E
>


m
n_m


ocE
m


_m
m


<
F


=
.._E


m
..n_<


m
_m


0o


oo.o
m


m
-


__.<xssm
28_B


s_


8.o
m


m
-


x?sm
28__8s_


oo.o
m


m
-


__u<28622
«E


m
u.»


m
m


-
e8_B


s_


m
o.8~.m


m
m


-
e8_8s_


8...
m


m
-.__u<a_.3m


w
_m


_8w


oo.o
m


m
-


a_.8om
_m


_8m


8...
m


m
-


a_.3$
_m


_8m


oo.
m


m
o:m


>
u<.690


oE
oo=


_
uosaw


.
xm


9:00:
96


0


m
E


~:~ao
._.D


m
_2n_m


m
uorm


tm
?oas?


cam
m .o~a~aom


.m
o >m


n_
...w


m
>


>
5.62


oE
om


n_m
souscoo


8_zom
xm


eoE
S


.*0
>


20
->


>
o<


s=
3soo


>
._m


E
E


...m
_m


o_aw
_«3w


m
E


N
E


S
oém


o
m


i
m


.o_qE
oo


m
_o>


oum
3E


w


___n_m
:o .m


am ._:O
>


-m
w


xm
._.


a___%
_._850


w
«E


m
a.


xcm
m


m
..2m


:m
.F


.650


cannon W
Q


X
W


P


m
S


~a.,_$>
E


c


$u%
_9....>


>


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #I.


August 23, 2019 Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $217,9...
Page 98 of 118







Outgoing Pa ments Re ort . “V p
I BankofAmer|ca‘/Z


MerrillLynchCompany: City of MillCreek
Requester: Gobraiel, Silvea
Run Date: 08/28/2019 10:40:25 AMCDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:Urgent/Wire


Template Name: MATRIXIMEBT
Template Code: VVILTRUST


Status: Confirmed By Bank
Transaction Number: 198QJ2406AlX1R28


Debit Account information


Debit Bank: ‘—


Debit Account: I
Debit Account Name: Treas Checking


Debit currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Beneficiary Name: MATRIXTRUST COMPANY Bene?ciary Account: .


Beneficiary Address: NA Bene?ciary Bank ID: i
Bene?ciary City: NA JPMORGANCHASE BANK,NA


Bene?ciary Postal Code: NA 1111 POLARISPKWY
Bene?ciary Country: US - United States of America COLUMBUS


US - UnitedStates of America
Bene?ciary Email:


Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 08/27/2019
Credit Amount: 28,973.56


Optional Information


sender's Reference Number: CITYMILLCREEK Bene?ciary lnfonnation: City of MillCreek n3177e


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver Information:


Control Information


input: lotleo Input Time: 08/26/2019 7:24:12 PM CDT
Approved: snni-.m:.- Time: 08/27/2019 9:37:47 AMCDT


Initial Confirmation.
Confirmation #:


AGENDA ITEM #I.


August 23, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $217,9... Page 99 of 118







RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 08I26I2019


City of Mill Creek Report Time: 07:22:26 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 08/27/2019


ACH ID: Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Entered Created By: LOTLEO


Released By:


Name |.|.3. A__t.mounM2 BQMD. mum! 1; D


BAC EENEF”A°""'" $1,422.40 c c


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .422.40 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 ,422.40 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.jsp?source=BATCHSU...8/26/2019


AGENDA ITEM #I.


August 23, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $217,9... Page 100 of 118







Outgoing Payments Report


Company: Cityof MillCreek
Requester: Gobraiel.Silvea
Run Date: 08/28/2019 10:43:30 AMCDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status: Confirmed By Bank
Transaction Number: 198QJ25236KZOH22


Debit Account lnforrnation


Debit Bank:
Debit Accountr


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit currency:USD


Bene?ciary Details


Beneficiary Name: ICMARC
Beneficiary Address: P.O. Box64553


Beneficiary City: Baltimore
Beneficiary Postal Code: 21264-4553


Bene?ciary Country: US - UnitedStates ofAmerica


Payment Details


credit Currency: USD
credit Amount: 1,606.11


Optional information


sender's Reference Number: 302029


Additional Routing


lnterrnediary Bank ID:


Control information


input: lotleo
Approved: sgobraiei


initial confirmation
Confinnation F: I-


\


Bank ofAmerica"}/Z
MerrillLynch


Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Template Code: ICMA


Beneficiary Account:
Bene?ciary Bank ID:


1


MANUFACTURERSANDTRADERS TR C
ONE MANDT PLAZA.15THFL
BUFFALO
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Bene?ciary Mobile Number:


Value Date:


Bene?ciary lnfonnation:


08/27/201 9


City of MillCreek 302029


Receiver Information:


Input Time:
Time:


08/26/2019 7:25:29 PM CDT
08/27/2019 9:37:47 AMCDT


AGENDA ITEM #I.


August 23, 2019 Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $217,9... Page 101 of 118







March 26, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, March 26, 2019
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember
Stephanie Vignal, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda 


 
Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, asked Council to reject The Farm proposal in its 
current form. 
 
Melissa Duque, member of the Park & Recreation Board, congratulated 
Councilmember Vignal on being appointed to the Council and that she will be missed 
on the Board. 


PUBLIC HEARING
B. Development Agreement between the Farm by Vintage, LP at Mill Creek and the City 


of Mill Creek
 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Senior Planner Christi Amrine gave a PowerPoint presentation detailing the following: 


 Development Agreement process 


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019 Page 102 of 118



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2019/Audio%203-26-19.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/28031

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/29684/3-26-19%20The%20Farm%20Public%20Hearing.pdf





March 26, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


 Purpose of hearing 
 Public notice requirements 
 Public hearing process 
 Public hearing record 
 EGUV background 
 Development Agreement highlights 
 Environmental protection and public access 


 
Senior Planner Amrine handed out 30 copies of the revised Development Agreement 
to the audience prior to the start of the meeting; and noted that public comments were 
distributed to Council prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. City Attorney Scott Missall discussed revisions made 
to the Development Agreement. 
 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public comment portion of the public hearing. 
 
Dave Scunter, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The 
Farm development. 
 
Steve Lentill, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The Farm 
development. 
 
Sean Duffy, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The Farm 
development. 
 
Theresa Logdson, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with her thoughts on The 
Farm development. 
 
Dilip Koshy, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The Farm 
development. 
 
Greg Chandra, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The 
Farm development. 
 
Erika Moca, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with her thoughts on The Farm 
development. 
 
Carmen Fisher, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with her thoughts on The 
Farm development. 
 
Sid Segal, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The Farm 
development. 
 
Swaminathan Balasubramanian, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his 
thoughts on The Farm development. 
 
April Bird, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with her thoughts on The Farm 


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019 Page 103 of 118



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/29683/3-26-19%20Public%20Comments.pdf





March 26, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


development. 
 
Kevin White, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with his thoughts on The Farm 
development. 
 
Sonya Roland, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council with her thoughts on The 
Farm development. 
 
Council engaged in discussion again. President of Vintage Housing Development 
Ryan Patterson answered questions from Council.  
 
Mayor Pruitt closed the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m. 


At 8:27 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to extend the meeting up 
to 10:00 p.m. Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to approve Ordinance 2019-849, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MILL CREEK AND THE 
FARM BY VINTAGE, LP PURSUANT TO MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 17.19 AND RCW 36.70B.170 ET SEQ. FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 
OF PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE EAST GATEWAY URBAN VILLAGE; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Councilmember Steckler seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 4-2-1. Opposed by Councilmember Cavaleri and 
Councilmember Vignal. Abstained by Mayor Pruitt for feeling intimidated and 
bullied into voting a certain way.  


RECESS TO BREAK
C. At 8:42 the Council recessed for a 10 minute break. 


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION
D. At 8:52 p.m. the Council reconvened to regular session. 


NEW BUSINESS
E. Appointments to the Park & Recreation Board


 
Councilmember Bond stated that he and Councilmember Cavaleri interviewed 3 
candidates to fill one vacancy on the Park & Recreation Board. 


Councilmember Bond made a motion to appoint Tammy Dunn to serve a mid-
term appointment on the Park & Recreation Board expiring October 31, 2020. 
Councilmember Cavaleri seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


F. Sale and Disposal of Surplus Police Department Vehicles 
 
Police Chief Greg Elwin briefed Council on the condition of the 2013 Harley Davidson 
police motorcycle and the 1999 Ford Explorer police administration vehicle and 


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019 Page 104 of 118







March 26, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


reviewed Mill Creek Municipal Code 3.44, regarding the sale of surplus property. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. 


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to declare a 2013 Harley Davidson 
police motorcycle and a 1999 Ford Explorer police administration vehicle as 
surplus and authorize the City Manager to direct that an auction occur using a 
licensed auctioneer. Councilmember Vignal seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously.  


REPORTS
G. Mayor/Council


 
Mayor Pruitt thanked staff for their cleanup efforts on 35th Ave SE. 
 
Mayor Pruitt reported that the Senate budget was released today. Council agreed to 
send a letter of thanks to Senator Hobbs for help with the 35th Ave SE Reconstruction 
Project culverts. 
 
Mayor Pruitt reported on an article in the Herald featuring Councilmember Mark Bond. 
 
Councilmember Bond reported that all 3 candidates interviewed for the Park & 
Recreation Board vacancy were qualified and that the selected candidate, Tammy 
Dunn, will be an asset to the City while serving on the Board. 
 
Councilmember Vignal reported that she attended the Snohomish County Cities 
(SCC) meeting on March 21 with Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw and Councilmember 
Steckler. 
 
Councilmember Vignal reported that she attended the Swift Green Line Grand 
Opening event with Mayor Pruitt, Councilmember Steckler, and Councilmember Todd. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reported on the Vision 2050 discussion that took place at 
the March 21 SCC meeting. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reported that he will be attending the Southwest Urban 
Growth Area Boundary Planning Study Workshops later in the week. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw thanked staff for their prompt response to the 35th Ave SE 
cleanup effort. 
 
Councilmember Todd reported on funding received by the Transportation 
Improvement Board to help fund Complete Streets.
 
Councilmember Todd reported on the Senate budget and his opportunity to speak with 
Representative Mead and Representative Lovick regarding needs of the City. 
 
Councilmember Todd encouraged Council to take a ride on the new Swift Green Line. 


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019 Page 105 of 118







March 26, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


H. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


I. Staff
 Park & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of January 2, 2019
 Mill Creek Sports Park Grand Reopening
 Discussion: 35th Ave SE Reopening


Council discussed dates, details, and attendance for the 35th Ave SE Reopening 
ceremony. 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
J. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda


There were no comments from the audience. 


RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
(Confidential session of the Council)


K. At 9:15 p.m. Council recessed to executive session. City Attorney Scott Missall was 
present. 
 


 To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment pursuant 
to RCW 42.30.110 (1)(g).


 
The executive session concluded at 10:41. No action was taken. 


At 10:00 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to extend the executive 
session and meeting to 10:40 p.m. Councilmember Steckler seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 10:41 p.m. 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


Gina Pfister, City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #J.


City Council Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2019 Page 106 of 118







April 2, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, April 2, 2019
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember
Stephanie Vignal, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Councilmember Steckler arrived at 6:02 p.m. 
Councilmember Todd arrived at 6:03 p.m.


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. There were no comments from the audience. 


RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
(Confidential session of the Council) 


B. At 6:02 p.m. Council recessed to executive session for up to 30 minutes to evaluate 
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(g).
 
At 6:33 p.m. by consensus of the Council, the executive session was extended for up 
to 30 minutes. City Attorney Scott Missall advised the public. 
 
The executive session concluded at 6:54 p.m.


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Meeting Minutes of April 2, 2019 Page 107 of 118



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2019/Audio%204-2-19.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/28099





April 2, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


C. At 6:55 p.m. the Council reconvened to regular session. 
 
Councilmembers discussed the recruitment process and stated their 
recommendations for the position. 
 
City Attorney Scott Missall stated that he will contact Michael Ciaravino tomorrow to 
begin contract negotiations. 


Councilmember Vignal made a motion to select Michael Ciaravino as the 
Council's choice to serve as Mill Creek's new City Manager, subject to approval 
of an acceptable contract. Councilmember Cavaleri seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  


Councilmember Vignal made a motion to authorize and direct the City Attorney 
and the City's search consultant, Andrew Gorgey, to undertake contract 
negotiations with Michael Ciaravino and bring back a final proposed contract for 
Council consideration at its April 9, 2019 meeting if possible. Councilmember 
Cavaleri seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


Councilmember Todd made a motion to extend Interim City Manager Stowe's 
current contract to April 24, 2019 to enable completion of the City Manager 
search process and contract negotiations with the new City Manager. 
Councilmember Steckler seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


NEW BUSINESS
D. Settlement Agreement  Between the City of Mill Creek and Comcast Regarding 


Franchise Fee Audit 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained why staff would like more time to review 
the Agreement and will bring this agenda item back at a later date. Councilmember 
Todd expressed concern over a clause that appears to pass the reimbursement fee on 
to customers, and would like to see the spreadsheet analysis if the agreement moves 
towards negotiations. 


STUDY SESSION
E. 2019 Winter Storm Response Update


 
Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa and Public Works 
Supervisor Nathan Beagle led Council through a PowerPoint presentation covering a 
multitude of storm related topics: storm magnitude, public works resources, public 
works estimated costs, challenges, helpful actions, lessons learned, and opportunity 
for improvements. 
 
Council engaged in discussion and provided Director Hortillosa with suggestions to 
consider for future storm planning including additional resident resources, an 
expanded temporary crew, and pedestrian consideration.  


CONSENT AGENDA


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Meeting Minutes of April 2, 2019 Page 108 of 118



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/29694/4-2-19%202019%20Winter%20Storm%20Response%20Update.pdf





April 2, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


F. City Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2018


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 
Councilmember Steckler seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


REPORTS
G. Mayor/Council


There were no reports from the Council. 
H. City Manager


 Council Planning Schedule 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe asked Council to email him their availability for a 35th 
Ave SE reopening ceremony. 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe reported that Mill Creek was the recipient of the 
Transportation Improvement Board's Complete Streets Award. 


I. Staff
 Contract for Domestic Violence Services 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
J. There were no comments from the audience. 


RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
(Confidential Session of the Council)


K. At 7:47 p.m. Council recessed to executive session to up to 30 minutes for 
consideration of real estate matters pursuant to RCW 42.30.120(1)(b)(c). 
 
At 8:20 p.m. Councilmember Steckler made a motion to extend the regular meeting 
and executive session up to 8:45 p.m. Councilmember Bond seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. City Attorney Scott Missall advised the public. 
 
The executive session ended at 8:37 p.m.


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION
L. At 8:38 p.m. Council reconvened to regular session. 


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 8:38 p.m.


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Meeting Minutes of April 2, 2019 Page 109 of 118







April 2, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Gina Pfister, City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Council Meeting Minutes of April 2, 2019 Page 110 of 118







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: September 6, 2019  
 


 


September 24, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due September 16)  


 Presentation by: Community Transit-Swift 


Orange Line 


 Presentation: Great Garden Awards - Meredith 


 Frontier/Northwest Cable Franchise Resolution 


– Gina H 


 Mill Creek Blvd Corridor Concepts – Gina H 


 Study Session – Grant Funding Application 


Process – Michael 


 Study Session – Vision 2050 Draft – Tom 


 Study Session: Ordinance Amending MCMC re: 


Business Park Zone District – Gina H  


 Report: Farmer’s Market  


 Report: 2
nd


 Quarter Financials  


 


 


October 1, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due September 23)  


 PRA Policy Update – Gina P  


 Study Session: City Connections Magazine 


 


 


October 8, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due September 30)  


 Report: Farmer’s Market  


 


 


October 22, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due October 14)  


 Ordinance Amending MCMC 2.04 – Gina P 


 


 


November 5, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due October 28)  


 Study Session: Property Tax & EMS Levies  


 Study Session: Proposed Budget Amendments  


 


 


November 12, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due November 4)  


 Public Hearing: Property Tax & EMS Levies 


 Ordinances: Property & EMS Levies 


 


 


 


 


 


SEPTEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


1  2  3  4  5  6  7  


       


8  9  10  11  12  13  14  


       


15  16  17  18  19  20  21  


       


22  23  24  25  26  27  28  


       


29  30            


       


OCTOBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


    1  2  3  4  5  


       


6  7  8  9  10  11  12  


       


13  14  15  16  17  18  19  


       


20  21  22  23  24  25  26  


       


27  28  29  30  31      


       


NOVEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24  25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #M.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 111 of 118







 


 


 


 


November 26, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due September 30)  


 Public Hearing: Proposed Budget Amendments 


 


 


December 3, 2019  


(Agenda Summary due November 25)  


 Ordinance: Budget Amendments  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Utility Project Management - Michael  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax – Michael   


 ST3 Stations – Sound Transit  


 Legislative Retreat – Michael  


 Gold Star Memorial – Michael  


 Dobson Remillard Property – Michael  


 Fleet Program – Gina H/Greg/Peggy  


 Community Funding Criteria and Source of 


Funds – Michael  


 Surface Water System Study Group – Gina H 


 Updates to the Governance Manual – Michael 


 Compensation Strategies – Charlie  


 Construction Tax Revenue – TBD 


 Emergency Operations Center – Greg  


 Crosswalk Locations & Standards – Gina H 


 HB1406 Enact Local Tax Credit Resolution by 


1/30/2020 , Ordinance by 7/27/2020 – Tara 


 Appropriation vs. Authorization – Michael  


DECEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


1  2  3  4  5  6  7  


       


8  9  10  11  12  13  14  


       


15  16  17  18  19  20  21  


       


22  23  24  25  26  27  28  


       


29  31  31          


       


JANUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


FEBRUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23  24  25  26  27  28  29  


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #M.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 112 of 118







Tom^Rogers


From: Tom Rogers


Sent: Friday, September 6, 2019 3:23 PM
To: Mike Todd; Brian Holtzclaw
Cc: Gina Hortillosa; Michael Ciaravino


Subject: RE: Draft letter re Vision 2050


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw and Councilmember Todd


Thank you for your comments to date on the draft letter. Unfortunately there are still a couple of inconsistencies


between the two of your comments. Including this email with the draft letter (with both of your
comments/suggestions) in the packet. My hope would be that we can work together between now and Tuesday


evening to prepare a letter you both can support. If there is still a difference of opinion, the Council can discuss and


provide direction.


Again, thank you for your help with this.


Tom


Tom Rogers, AICP
Planning and
Development Services Manager
tomr(5)citvofmillcreek.com
P: 425-921-5721 | F: 425-745-9650
Facebook I Twitter I Instaaram


v
Mi 11 Creek


W ,\ r. 111 N l.; -1 (-> ^


From: Mike Todd <MTodd@cityofmillcreek.com>


Sent: Friday, September 6, 2019 11:10 AM
To: Brian Holtzclaw <bholtzclaw@cityofmillcreek.com>; Tom Rogers <tomr@cityofmillcreek.com>


Cc: Gina Hortillosa <ginah@cityofmillcreek.com>; Michael Ciaravino <michaelc@cityofmillcreek.com>; MikeTodd


<MTodd@cityofmillcreek.com>


Subject: Re: Draft letter re Vision 2050


Tom:


Excellent letter. You write "planner" well, and did a great job of capturing the basic issues that we asked to


have covered.


(hint to all: Outlook does not seem to show Brian's mark ups; download the attachment, then open in Word


and it shows Brian's Comments and my in-line adds.)


Brian's additions/changes are also good. I have placed some in-line comments (n red) in the attached mark


up. To go with that, I have these words of explanation for my mark ups:


• paragraph 2: maybe "concerns" is too strong; synonyms "comments" or "suggestions" ?


• paragraph 3:1 don't recall an explicit comments V2050 acknowledRing V2020/V2040 shortfalls, but


maybe Brian can point that out. Regardless, it is true that those were plans, and they were not fully


realized. Maybe there is a softer way to reward that sentence? The last sentence is kind of vague but


AGENDA ITEM #N.


Staff Vision 2050 City Statement Page 113 of 118







strong; it could leave a reader wondering what we really mean. I don't know exactly what to say, but I


think we should indicate that what we mean is that


o GMA will likely need (and hopefully get) updates over the next plan's duration, and


o as things stand (at least close to us), the grand plan of cities annexing all of the UGA is not going


to happen, so counties will be forced to provide urban level services in some significant


areas despite the desire to have cities do that. Is that really what we want to have


happen? Maybe that issue should be called out as something that legislative bodies need to


work on?


Overall/ I think our discussion on Tuesday was that with the way the laws and market forces are


right now, we are not likely to get V2050 to happen as written - that is, there is some "wishing" that is


going on. If there are obvious obstacles to a plan happening, those obstacles should be called out and


actions designed to address them, not just ignore them. Maybe Tom can wordsmith this a little to help


convey that better? Or maybe we need more debate next Tuesday to come to words that we can all


agree on?


city comments, first bullet (page 2): I stuck Brian's whole addition, because this is not a Mill Creek


thing. It would be up to the county to propose a change in the UGA; Mill Creek, as an abutting


neighbor, would be asked to comment, but it is premature for Mill Creek to weigh in on this (1) before


it is proposed, and (2) before Council and staff have really spend some time studying and discussing


this. I don't think SCT even went this far in their comments - they opted for something more general


that is similar to the wording that Tom had in the original draft. I think Tom's original words are fine


for the Mill Creek letter, so I suggest we strike it all as noted.


Thanks, all, for your work on this. I am pleased that Mill Creek is providing some useful and substantial input


totheV2050plan.


Mike


Mike Todd
Councilmember
City of Mill Creek


mtoddO.cityofmillcreek.com
P: 425-308-2669 | F: 425-745-9650


From: Brian Holtzclaw <bholtzclaw@cityofmillcreek.com>


Sent: Thursday, September 5, 2019 5:06 PM


To: Tom Rogers <tomr@cityofmillcreek.com>


Cc: MikeTodd <MTodd@citvofmillcreek.com>; Gina Hortillosa <Rinah(a)cityofmillcreek.com>; Michael Ciaravino


<michaelc@cityofmillcreek.com>


Subject: Re: Draft letter re Vision 2050


My suggestions for consideration and discussion. My changes hopefully show up as redlines.


2


AGENDA ITEM #N.


Staff Vision 2050 City Statement Page 114 of 118







Brian Holtzclaw


Councilmember/Mayor Pro Tem


(425) 478-7453 (cell)


Sent from my iPad


On Sep 5, 2019, at 4:09 PM, Tom Rogers <tomr@cityofmillcreek.com> wrote:


Attached is a draft letter that I hope addresses the discussion from last Tuesday night. My


understanding is that I am to forward a draft to Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw Councilmember Todd


to seek their input.


In addition to the points that were in the Powerpoint presentation, you will see that I have


attempted to include a discussion supporting local flexibility in the way that growth is


accommodated so that we can react to many unique conditions, including market


conditions. This is consistent with the language that is in the comment letter being considered


by the SCT Steering Committee. I have also attempted to address the issue of including air


emission goals/standards that could be interpreted to be greater than those required by federal


and state law, and am recommending that the policies be revised to be consistent with federal


and state law. Finally, I have addressed Councilmember Steckler's point that the jobs to


housing ratio in Snohomish County should be even higher than proposed in the draft Vision


2050 document.


Councilmembers and staff. Please provide any comments/suggestions you may have.


The goal is to have this letter completed and available to place in the packet by tomorrow am.


Tom


<image001.jpg> Tom Rogers, AICP
Planning and
Development Services Manager
tomr(a)citvofrnillcreek.com
P: 425-921-5721 | F: 425-745-9650
Facebook | Twitter | Instagram


NOTICE OF PUBLIC DISCLOSURE: This e-mail account is public domain. Any correspondence from


or to this e-mail account is a public record. Accordingly, this e-mail, in whole or in part, may be


subject to disclosure pursuant to RCW 42.56, regardless of any claim of confidentiality or


privilege asserted by an external party.


<DRAFT Letter to PSRCl.docx>


AGENDA ITEM #N.


Staff Vision 2050 City Statement Page 115 of 118







DRAFT Letter to PSRC 


 


 


 


Date 


 


 


 


Paul Inghram, AICP 


Director of Growth Management 


Puget Sound Regional Council 


1011 Western Avenue, Suite 500 


Seattle, Washington 98104 


 


Dear Mr. Inghram: 


 


The City of Mill Creek (City) recognizes that preparing a 30-year plan to accommodate the 


anticipated growth in the Puget Sound region by 2050 while maintaining and improving the 


quality of life for existing and future citizens presents monumental challenges.  In that spirit, the 


City appreciates the work that has gone into the preparation of the Draft Vision 2050 plan and 


the opportunity to provide comments. 


Overall, the City supports the Draft Vision 2050 Plan, which is based on the Transit Focused 


approach that was evaluated in the SEIS. The City believes that it makes sense to place the bulk 


of future growth along the existing and planned high capacity transit routes.  We are pleased that 


the existing unincorporated areas within the Urban Growth Areas along existing and planned 


high capacity transit are now included within the areas identified as High Capacity Transit 


(HCT) Communities and have been identified as areas for more dense development, although we 


have concerns (comments/suggestions?) as noted below.  


While we support much of the Draft Vision 2050 Plan, the City notes that the difficulty will be 


implementing the Plan in an equitable way that maintains and even improves the high quality of 


life enjoyed by our residents and businesses.  The draft plan acknowledges (I don’t recall seeing 


an explicitcall out of this, although we do know that the growth has not been precisely as desired 


in 2020/2040; maybe soften this wording?) that employment and population growth has not 


necessarily occurred as planned under Vision 2020 and Vision 2040.  While the City supports the 


overall direction the Draft Vision 2050 Plan sets for our region we believe significant changes to 


state laws will be required to facilitate growth actually happening as envisioned and to bring the 


plan to reality.(maybe soften this and/or be more explicit:  ...”we believe that future adjustments 


to GMA and annexation incentives maybe required to achieve the goals of V2050”.) 


The City supports the comments being submitted by the SCT Steering Committee. In addition, 


the City of Mill Creek provides the following comments/suggestions:  


 Need for flexibility in accommodating future growth targets - In Snohomish County, the 


land use plans and zoning currently do not collectively have the capacity to accommodate 


the population and employment targets for the HCT Communities.  While the extent of 


AGENDA ITEM #N.


Staff Vision 2050 City Statement Page 116 of 118







 


 


 


 


Draft Vision 2050 Comments 


Page 2 
 


the deficit is unknown at this time, each jurisdiction has unique circumstances that will 


present challenges to accepting additional growth, including the condition of existing 


housing stock, the availability of vacant and/or underdeveloped land suitable for 


development, the availability/timing of high capacity transit and other infrastructure, and 


other market factors. As a result, local jurisdictions need to have the flexibility and 


authority to prepare plans that accommodate the anticipated growth in a manner that 


takes these unique conditions into account. This is especially important in light of 


Snohomish County’s recent effort to examine issues with potentially expanding the SW 


UGA boundary near the City as part of its 2023 plan update. As is the case with many 


cities, our residents are cautious and concerned about more dense development in our 


cities and the resulting impacts on traffic and schools. It is important to the City that the 


Vision 2050 Plan allow the County flexibility to consider a UGA expansion in 2023 as 


one of the ways to accommodate the projected growth. Without that option the City may 


be forced to accommodate more growth than our citizens are willing to accept.  
 


 Need for infrastructure necessary to support anticipated growth – To successfully 


accommodate the land use patterns envisioned in Vision 2050, a commitment to 


providing the transportation and other public infrastructure in a timely manner must be 


secured.  Allowing increased densities without the necessary infrastructure in place is the 


primary threat to the quality of life for our existing and future residents, and will spoil the 


appetite of the region’s residents for increased densities moving forward.  Long-term and 


dependable funding commitments for infrastructure has proven difficult in the past.  An 


action step should be added to Vision 2050 that directs PSRC to communicate and work 


with appropriate political bodies/agencies to seek long-term funding mechanisms 


necessary to provide the infrastructure to support the anticipated growth. 


 


 Need to adopt realistic and practical standards for reducing greenhouse gasses and other 


air and soil toxins consistent with state law – MPPs En-3 and CC-1 call for the reduction 


of greenhouse gasses and other pollutants, which is a goal that everyone can agree on.  


However, requiring actions to improve air and water quality, soils, and natural systems 


“where possible” (En-3), and calling for meeting “targets and goals” set by state, 


regional, national governments and the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency (CC-1), may not 


be realistic or practical given the competing challenges of accommodating growth 


addressed in Vision 2050.  Many actions may be possible, but may not be practical. It is 


our opinion that the language in the subject policies be changed to require actions to 


reduce the emissions of greenhouse gasses and/or other toxins as required by state and 


federal law.    


     


 Need for adequate emergency management plans and services to accommodate future 


growth - The increased population in the Puget Sound region anticipated in Vision 2050 


presents a sizable challenge for preparing and implementing emergency management 


plans and providing services.  As acknowledged in Vision 2050, the region is susceptible 


AGENDA ITEM #N.


Staff Vision 2050 City Statement Page 117 of 118







 


 


 


 


Draft Vision 2050 Comments 


Page 3 
 


to earthquakes, landslides, and wildfires.  Vision 2050 does include a policy (MPP-PS-


19) to “support” efforts to increase the resilience of public services, utilities, and 


infrastructure by preparing for disasters and other impacts and coordinated planning for 


system recovery.  However, we believe that this language should be stronger to “ensure” 


that adequate emergency management plans and services will be in place to safely 


accommodate the land use patterns envisioned in Vision 2050. 


 


 Need to improve the jobs/housing ratio for Snohomish County – The existing unbalanced 


jobs to housing ratio leads to a high volume of commuter traffic to and from Snohomish 


County into King County and beyond contributing to air pollution, traffic congestion, and 


a decreased quality of life for commuters and their families.  The City of Mill Creek 


appreciates the allocation of more jobs to Snohomish County, which will improve the 


County’s ratio of jobs to housing.  This being said, there is still more work to be done to 


increase the ratio of jobs to housing in Snohomish County.   


 


On behalf of the Mill Creek City Council, thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on 


Vision 2050.  The steps the region takes today will determine whether or not we are successful in 


maintaining the high quality lifestyle afforded in the region.   


 


Respectfully, 


 


 


 


Pam Pruitt 


Mayor 
 


E:\Government docs\Mill Creek\attachment 1 MST comments.docx 


 


 


 


 


  


 


AGENDA ITEM #N.


Staff Vision 2050 City Statement Page 118 of 118





		Agenda

		B. Waste Management

		C. House Bill 1406

		D. ILA with Everett Public Schools for the SRO Program

		E. Acceptance of Grant Funding for the 2019 Historic Preservation Program Expenditures

		F. Check Vouchers

		G. Payroll Vouchers 7-25-19

		H. Payroll Vouchers 8-9-19

		I. Payroll Vouchers 8-23-19

		J. Regular Council Meeting - 26 Mar 2019 - Minutes - Html

		K. Regular Council Meeting - 02 Apr 2019 - Minutes - Html

		M. Council Planning Schedule

		N. Vision 2050 City Statement




